W. E. B. DU BOIS REGIONAL MIDDLE SCHOOL

Student/Family Handbook 2022-2023





W. E. B. Du Bois Telephone Numbers

W. E. B. Du Bois Main Office	644-2300
W. E. B. Du Bois Fax	644-2394
Nurse	644-2324
Kitchen	644-2325
Custodian	644-2326

District Numbers

BHRSD Central Office	298-4017
Superintendent of Schools	298-4017 x19
BHRSD Special Education Office	298-4017 x14
Monument Mountain Regional High School	528-3346
Muddy Brook Regional Elementary School	644-2350

Email Contacts

Email addresses may be found on the district website www.bhrsd.org Administration and teacher email addresses are in the format of first name.last name@bhrsd.org

i.e. ben.doren@bhrsd.org

Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION	6
BERKSHIRE HILLS REGIONAL SCHOOL COMMITTEE AND ADMINISTRATION	6
Message from the Administration	7
WHAT IS A MIDDLE SCHOOL?	8
School Mission Statement	9
SCHOOL AND FAMILY COMPACT	10
Sharing Concerns	
Staff Directory	13
GENERAL INFORMATION AND PROCEDURES	15
School Hours	10
AFTER SCHOOL	
PICKUP DROPOFF AND PARKING	
SCHOOL CLOSING OR DELAY	
EMERGENCY DRILLS AND PROCEDURES	
LOST AND FOUND	
LOCKERS	
FIELD TRIPS	
GRADE LEVEL TEAMS/SCHEDULE ORGANIZATION	
GRADING SYSTEM	
HOMEWORK	
Power School	
Honor Roll	
HONOR ROLL EXTRA HELP	
GENERAL EDUCATION TEAM MEETING	
SCHOOL ACTIVITIES	
PARENT INVOLVEMENT	
Parental Support and Fundraising Groups	
WEBSITE	
WEEK AT A GLANCE	
Project Connection	20
STUDENT SERVICES	20
SPECIAL EDUCATION AND 504	20
HOMEBOUND INSTRUCTION	21
Service Animals	21
Assistive Technology	2 1
EQUAL ACCESS TO ALL ASPECTS OF K-12 PROGRAM	2 1
Non-Discrimination Statement	22
Parental Notification Law	22
Transfer of Parental Rights	22
FAMILY EDUCATIONAL RIGHTS AND PRIVACY AND STUDENT RECORDS ACT	22
RIGHT OF ACCESS INSPECTION AND REQUEST FOR AMENDMENT OF RECORDS BY CUSTODIAL PARENTS AND ELIGIBLE STUDENTS	2 ⁴
Non-Custodial Parental Request for Student Records	25
PROTECTION OF PUPIL RIGHTS AMENDMENT	26
HOMELESS EDUCATION ACT	27
ENGLISH LANGUAGE EDUCATION	27
EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES	
NO CHILD LEFT BEHIND	
HEALTH AND WELLNESS	29

WELLNESS POLICY	29
Wellness Committee	29
Nutrition Guidelines	29
NUTRITION AND PHYSICAL EDUCATION	30
Nutrition Education	30
Physical Education Activities	30
Social/Emotional Activities	31
Other Wellness Activities	31
Evaluation:	31
CONCUSSION MANAGEMENT	31
CODE OF CONDUCT	35
RESTORATIVE PRACTICES	35
Attendance	36
Excused Absences	36
Unexcused Absences	37
Notification	37
Make-up Missed Work	37
DISMISSALS	38
Attendance Procedure	38
TARDINESS	39
Student Responsibility for Class Attendance	39
Tardiness to Class	39
Tardiness to School	39
Bussing and Bus Expectations	39
Dress Expectations	41
Dress Code Goals	41
Dress Code Guidelines	42
BULLYING PREVENTION AND INTERVENTION	43
HARASSMENT AND NON-DISCRIMINATION PROCEDURES	46
Investigation Process	46
Harassment Reporting Responsibilities	47
Procedures for filing a complaint	
Interim Measures	50
Appeals	50
Referral to Law Enforcement and Outside Agencies	50
RETALIATION	
Hazing G.L. c. 269, §§ 17, 18, & 19	
RESTITUTION	
SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICIES	
Procedures for Short Term Suspension	57
EMERGENCY REMOVAL	
EXCLUSION FROM PRIVILEGES	58
PROCEDURES FOR LONG TERM SUSPENSION	58
Procedures for Expulsions	59
OTHER EXCLUSIONS FROM CLASS	
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS	
Administrative Actions in Felony Cases	
RESTRAINT OF STUDENTS IN PUBLIC SCHOOLS.	
DISCIPLINE PROCEDURES FOR STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES OR IMPAIRMENTS	
DISTRICT POLICIES	63
COPMS	6/

Bullying Prevention and Incident Reporting Form	64
PARENT OR GUARDIAN CONSENT FORM	68
ELECTRONIC INFORMATION POLICY	68
DISTRIBUTION OF MEDICINE LETTER	69
STUDENT RECORDS LETTER	70
RECEIPT OF PARENT/STUDENT HANDBOOK	7:

Introduction

Berkshire Hills Regional School Committee and Administration

Mr. Stephen Bannon, Chairman Mr. Richard Dohoney, Vice Chairman Ms. Corey Sprague, Assistant Treasurer Diane Singer, Secretary

Mr. Sean Stephen Ms Bonnie Bonn-Buffoni Mr. William Fields Ms Kristin Piasecki Mrs. Anne Hutchinson Mr. Jason St. Peter Mrs. Molly Thomas

Administration Berkshire Hills School District

SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS Dr. Peter Dillon

DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES
Mrs. Kate Burdsall

DIRECTOR OF LEARNING AND TEACHING Mr. Jonathan Bruno

> BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR Mrs. Sharon Harrison

> DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS Mr. Steve Soule

MUDDY BROOK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL Ms. Kathryn Retzell, Principal Ms. Cynthia Carey, Assistant Principal

W. E. B. DU BOIS REGIONAL MIDDLE SCHOOL Mr. Ben Doren, Principal Mr. Miles Wheat, Assistant Principal

MONUMENT MOUNTAIN REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL
Mrs. Kristina Farina, Principal
Mr. Peter Falkowski, Assistant Principal
Mr. Keith Wright, Assistant Principal

Message from the Administration

Dear W. E. B. Du Bois Students and Families:

Welcome to the 2022-2023 school year! We look forward to success for all.

This Parent/Student Handbook is considered a guidebook for Berkshire Hills Regional School District families, and it is designed to give all members of our education community a shared and unified source of information. It provides the access you need to policies and legislation important to your child's education. Information contained in this booklet ranges from the district's medication policy to evacuation procedures. It provides for you all the information you are entitled to know through the No Child Left Behind Act, and it offers you names and numbers that may be helpful.

It is our hope that you will take a few minutes to review this handbook and discuss it with your child. Additional school and district information may be found on our website, www.bhrsd.org. Should you have any questions, please contact at 413-644-2300.

All the best,

Mr. Ben Doren

Principal

Mr. Miles Wheat **Assistant Principal**

Miles Wheat

Berkshire Hills Regional School District does not discriminate on the basis of age, race, color, sex, gender identity, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, disability, or homelessness.

If you need this Handbook translated into one of the below languages, or any other language, please contact the School Office.

GREEK: Εάν χρειάζεστε αυτό το εγχειρίδιο μεταφράζονται στα Ελληνικά, επικοινωνήστε με το κεντρικό

γραφείο. PORTUGUESE:

Se você precisa deste manual traduzido para o português, por favor contacte o escritório principal.

SPANISH: **CHINESE:**

Si necesita este manual traducido al español, por favor póngase en contacto con la oficina principal. 如果你需要這本手冊翻譯成中文, 請聯繫主要辦公室。

POLISH: Jeśli potrzebujesz niniejszy podręcznik w języku polskim, proszę skontaktować się z głównym biurem إذا كنت بحاجة إلى هذا الكتيب ترجمة إلى اللغة العربية، يرجى الاتصال المكتب الرئيس

HAITIAN CREOLE:Si ou bezwen manyèl sa-a ke nan kreyòl, souple kontakte Biwo pwensipal la.

اگر آپ کو اس کتابچہ کا اردو میں ترجمہ کی ضرورت ہے، مرکزی دفتر سے رابطہ کریں **URDU**:

GUJARATI: તમે આ हેન્ડબુક ગુજરાતી અનુવાદ જરૂર हોય તો, મુખ լបសិនបើអ្នកគ្រូវបានបកប្រែទៅជាភាសាខ្មែរសៀវភៅដៃនេះសូមទាក់ទងកា

<mark>SOMA MANDARIN_</mark>若您需要這手冊翻譯成中文,請聯絡辦事處。

What is a Middle School?

The Profile of a Du Bois Educator

Du Bois Middle School Is a progressive community that values learning for all students and teaching towards a sustainable future for our local and global society. We:

- Love working with middle schoolers.
- Dedicate ourselves to a small advisory group of students with a focus on building growth mindsets, infusing social-emotional learning, implementing restorative practices, and connecting families to their children's learning.
- Insist on building <u>diverse</u> and inclusive classrooms where all students can learn from one another and thrive.
- Collaborate with colleagues to build <u>authentic interdisciplinary units of study</u> that culminate in exceptional student work products.
- Commit to creating a student centered environment where all students are seen, heard, and valued.
- Have passions outside the classroom and are eager to share our interests with children, families and colleagues.
- Believe in the importance of connecting fieldwork, leadership education, and outdoor education into the curriculum.
- Most importantly, in a changing and diversifying community, will approach the challenges a school will inevitably face with a positive outlook focused on finding solutions and solving problems!

Is my fifth grader ready for this?

We don't have to tell you that the growth process is speeding up! You only have to count outgrown shoes and let out last month's hems to know that!

You might be surprised to learn that many growth studies show:

- that the change to adolescence can begin for early maturing girls in Grade 3 and for early maturing boys in Grade 4.
- that a majority of students go through these changes during Grades 5 through 8; and all will be in some stage of transition during these grades.
- that today's 10 year olds are about the same size and maturity level as the 12 year olds in your parent's day.

The Middle School is ready to meet the needs of your Student!

- **Counselors** are available to help students learn life-long problem-solving skills as they perceive their world as young adolescents.
- **Academic Teaming** prepares students for higher education, both with individual and team effort.
- The varied **Exploratory Classes** allow students to learn decision-making skills and permit them to experience success in the practical and performing arts.

• Each student is a member of a small **Crew.** Crews meet daily to hone their academic and social emotional skills. They also have a ton of fun together

School Mission Statement

In cooperation with parents and the community, the W. E. B. Du Bois Regional Middle School will provide all students a safe environment in which:

- Personal and academic excellence is promoted and celebrated.
- Student responsibility for learning is developed and expected.
- All people value and exercise respect and responsibility.
- A spirit of inquiry is recognized and fostered.
- An enthusiasm for life-long learning is instilled.

DBRMS subscribes to the beliefs set forth by the National Middle School Association. In their position paper, *This We Believe: Keys to Educating Young Adolescents* (2010), they outline a framework of four essential attributes that connect with the characteristics of successful middle grades schools. Embracing these attributes helps us in striving to create a school that best meets the needs of our students.

Essential Attributes

An education for young adolescents must be:

Developmentally responsive

Using the distinctive nature of young adolescents as the foundation upon which all decisions about school organization, policies, curriculum, instruction, and assessment are made.

Challenging

Ensuring that every student learns and every member of the learning community is held to high expectations.

Empowering

Providing all students with the knowledge and skills they need to take responsibility for their lives, to address life's challenges, to function successfully at all levels of society, and to be creators of knowledge.

Equitable

Advocating for and ensuring every student's right to learn and providing appropriately challenging and relevant learning opportunities for every student.

School and Family Compact

Compact of Shared Responsibility

W. E. B. Du Bois thanks you for the opportunity to be a part of your child's education. We know that there are many important actors is a child's life and no one person or organization is ever enough to see to all of the needs children have. We believe we have a better chance if we work closely together with families and involve students directly in taking responsibility for their educational success. The Compact of Shared Responsibility below grows out of that belief.

As a School we will:

- Communicate frequently regarding your child's education.
- Provide an environment that is safe and conducive to learning.
- Respect each student, their parents and the diverse culture of the school.
- Contact you quickly in case of any concerning incidents.
- Keep Power-School up to date so that you can keep track of your child's progress.

As Parents we will:

- Have on going communication with my child's school.
- See that my child attends school regularly and is habitually on time.
- Establish a time and place for my child to do homework and check regularly to see it is getting done.
- Monitor my child's involvement with electronics and social media.
- Come to the school as necessary to discuss the needs of my child and respond to specific incident.
- Be familiar with the student/family handbook.

As a Student I will:

- Come to school each day prepared to learn.
- Always work to the best of my ability.
- Strive to make a positive difference in the school community.
- Demonstrate respect for the behavioral norms of W. E. B. Du Bois, the staff, and my fellow students.
- Be familiar with the student/family handbook.

Sharing Concerns

From time to time, parents may wish to bring problems or concerns to the attention of appropriate school officials. We urge parents to use the following general guidelines:

- Any concerns regarding a school-related matter should first be raised by the parent with the staff member most directly involved unless the matter concerns civil rights, harassment, and/ or bullying (i.e. questions regarding the content of instructional materials or homework assignments should be raised with the teacher involved.)
- 2) If the matter remains unresolved, the parent may wish to speak with the building principal or assistant principal. Appointments can be scheduled by contacting the office.
- 3) If the matter is still unresolved, the parent may wish to speak to the superintendent. For an appointment, simply contact the superintendent's office.
- 4) If the matter still remains unresolved, the parent may wish to bring it to the attention of the School Committee by communicating directly with the chairperson of the School Committee.

We urge parents to use the progressive steps outlined above as most problems can be addressed satisfactorily by the teacher or other staff member most directly involved. We have found that by following this process parents find the most satisfaction and success.

The following are examples (not an all-inclusive list) of issues that are more appropriately addressed at the levels indicated.

1. **TEACHERS**

- a. student homework assignments, quizzes, and tests;
- b. course content, instructional materials, academic progress, and extra help;
- c. issues related to classroom discipline, relationships with other pupils and the teacher.

2 GUIDANCE COUNSELOR

- a. course selections and student schedule;
- b. student placement issues;
- c. school records

3. SCHOOL ADJUSTMENT COUNSELOR

- a. problems between: school and home; teacher and pupil; pupil and other pupils;
- b. personal matter relating to student development, behaviors, interactions and others;

4. **ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL**

- a. school wide discipline issues, bus conduct issues
- b. problems between: school and home; teacher and pupil; pupil and other pupils.
- c. after school programs.

5. **PRINCIPAL**

- a. any issue arising out of a school building when no other staff member can be specifically identified;
- b. instructional and co-curricular program issues (athletics, music, drama, etc.);
- c. matters related to the physical plant;
- d. complaints, dissatisfaction, or concerns regarding school personnel;
- e. school-wide discipline.

6. **SUPERINTENDENT**

- a. questions regarding school committee policies and administrative procedures;
- b. school committee meeting and agenda items;
- c. complaints, dissatisfaction, or concerns regarding school personnel or services which have not been resolved at the principal's level.

7. SCHOOL COMMITTEE

a. concerns that have not been successfully addressed/resolved throughout the process.

8. CIVIL RIGHTS COORDINATOR

a. concerns related to discrimination and/ or harassment based on any protected category under state and/ or federal law.

Staff Directory

Administration/Guidance

Principal Mr. Ben Doren
Assistant Principal Mr. Miles Wheat
Guidance Counselor Mr. Kevin Costello
Office Staff Mrs. Julie Duffin
Ms. Debra Spence

Team Five

Mrs. Carole Aberdale Math and Science

Mrs. Allison Fisher Humanities
Ms. Wendy Somes Humanities

Mrs. Nan Smith Special Education Mrs. Elizabeth Sparks Math and Science

Team Six

Ms. Susan Kravitz Math

Ms. Kim Cormier Literature, Fiction and Non-Fiction

Mrs. Allison McGee Special Education Mr. Matt Naventi Social Studies

Ms. Jessica Oakley Science

Team Seven

Mrs. Gail Bouknight-Davis Special Education Mr. Burr Milliken Special Education

Ms Mercedes Girona Spanish
Mr. Brendan Heck English
Mrs. Christine Lucy Social Studies

Mr. Chris Salinetti Math Mrs. Kathleen Gillis Science

Team Eight

Mr. Sam Ernst Special Education

Mrs. Catherine ElliottFrenchMrs. Fred EricksonMathMrs. Arantzazu Galdos-ShapiroEnglishMs Kristin McLaughlinScience

Mr. Julian Park Social Studies

Exploratory

Mr. Matthew Silpot General Music
Mrs. Stephanie Mason Physical Education
Mr. Chip Vittum Physical Education

Ms Hannah Gaschott Health
Mr. Danny O'Dell Design
Mrs. Katie Malone-Smith Art

Ms Jennifer Guerin

Library/Media Specialist

Interventionists

Ms Lynn Casella Clinician
Ms Elizabeth Walker-Thomas Clinician

Mr. Dominic Sacco Student Adjustment Counselor Mr. Chuck Brown Directed Study Supervisor

Mr. Jake Pinkston Therapeutic Learning Center Lead Teacher
Ms Ellie Rizzo Developmental Skills/Autism Lead Teacher

Ms Dianne Viggiano English as a Second Language

Ms Kristen Hartt Speech

Music

Mr. Jake Keplinger Band
Mr. Matthew Schneider Orchestra

School Nurse

Ms. Hillary Bashara

OT/PT

Ms. Kim Cavanaugh Ms. Pam Hassett Ms. Heidi Cooper

Paraprofessionals

Mrs. Kelly Bessey

Mrs. Kyoung Bubriski

Mrs. Audrey Console

Mrs. Ivy Cote

Mrs. Theresa Girona (Team Orange Crew)

Mrs. Betsy Heath

Mr. Andrew Kraforst-Lang

Ms Tammy Lockenwitz Payer

Mrs. Peg Pegorari

Mr. Brian Rembisz

Ms. Judy Duval

Ms Joellen Forte

Mr. Ron Hirsch

Custodial Staff

Mr. Scott Jenny Supervisor

New Hire

Mr. Fox Riiska

Mr. John Riiska

Food Service Staff

Mrs. Kathy Sullivan

Mrs. Theresa Errichetto Mrs. Holly Hamilton

Director

General Information and Procedures

School Hours

Students may be dropped off for school either by bus or by car beginning at 7:45. Our school day begins at 8:00. Students arriving at or after 8:00 will be marked as tardy. The day ends at 2:45. After school activities usually end at 3:45. A student must be with a staff member if in the building after 2:45. Students should be picked up promptly at the conclusion of the day or the activity.

After School

W. E. B. Du Bois offers a number of after school programs for our students. Announcements regarding registration are made on the morning announcements, via the PA and in the lunchroom. Information will also be available on our website. Sample programs include: basketball, volleyball, yearbook and newspaper. Should you wish to offer a class or want more information please contact Mr. Wheat. Please remember to pick up your child at the end of the activity. Most activities will end at 3:45.

Pickup Dropoff and Parking

Students are dismissed at 2:45 PM on a regular school days and 11:30 AM on half days. Parents picking up and dropping of 7th and 8th grade students should drive around to the rear parking lot. Parents picking up and dropping off 5th and 6th grade students should use the front circle. Families with students in multiple grade levels should use the front circle. Please do not block driveways or crosswalks during these times. A number of our students cross the street to walk to other school buildings. Cars in the crosswalk create a safety concern.

In the event of an early dismissal, parents should send a note to school with their child. The child gives the office staff the note and receives an early dismissal pass which is given to the teacher at the time they need to leave school.

If you have a situation arise which requires a message to your child regarding a change in plans we appreciate getting the call by 2 PM. This allows adequate time to get the message to the student. When dropping off your student please do not block the driveway. Proceed to the front entrance only. Do not use the bus entrance since that will delay the busses dropping off students.

Parents must not idle their cars while waiting for students at either drop off or pick up. Whenever a bus or vehicle arrives, the driver is to secure the bus or vehicle and shut the engine down as soon as possible. No bus or vehicle will be left at idle in excess of five minutes of anticipated idling time.

Limited visitor parking is available on your right as you drive around the front circle. Additional parking is available behind the school.

School Closing or Delay

The district will be using an automated calling system to alert families via phone and/or email of delays and closings. Please keep the school informed of phone number and email address changes. Information is also posted on www.bhrsd.org

In addition, school closings or delayed openings will be announced as early as possible on the following radio stations: WSBS 860, WBRK 1340, and WUPE 100.1. The following TV stations will also have information: WWLP/TV22, WRGB/6, and WTEN/10.

Emergency Drills and Procedures

Du Bois Middle School practices several types of drills throughout the course of the school year to ensure that students and staff are prepared in the event of an emergency. These drills are generally coordinated with the Great Barrington Police and Fire departments as well as with the state police and other local emergency service providers.

Emergency materials and an instructional flipchart are posted in every room to help students and staff understand their responsibilities in the event of an emergency. In the event of an off campus evacuation, Du Bois evacuates to Hevreh Synagogue on State Road.

If you have specific questions regarding emergency drills please contact Miles Wheat the assistant principal, Ben Doren the principal, or Steve Soule the director of operations for the district.

Lost and Found

Students are requested to bring any found articles, textbooks or clothing to the office. Lost and found items are collected in the cafeteria. The school suggests that you do not bring valuables or large sums of money to school as the school cannot assume responsibility for these items if lost. Periodically the school donates unclaimed items to local charities.

Lockers

Each student is assigned a locker at the beginning of the school year. Crew teachers give students the combinations. Students are not to share lockers or combinations. Searches of students, their property and lockers may be conducted by school personnel if school officials have reasonable grounds for suspecting that the search will turn up evidence that the student has violated or is violating either the law or the rules of the school. Therefore, students do not have any reasonable expectation of privacy in their lockers. Police may be contacted to assist school personnel. Students are not to write on lockers, put decals or pictures on lockers or to deface a locker in any way. Any student who damages of misuses a locker will be subject to disciplinary action, plus restitution in full including materials and labor. Your locker is the property of the Berkshire Hills Regional School District and loaned to you for storage of school books and materials, plus personal items such as clothing.

Field Trips

Field trips are an important part of the educational process. All students are expected to participate. Some trips happen during the school year and are designed to enrich the students' educational experience. Other trips are planned at the end of the school year as a culminating

activity. When there is an expense for a field trip, scholarships are available for families in need. Please submit a letter to the principal or assistant principal stating the amount you are able to contribute and the amount you will need in scholarship. We encourage all students to take part in fund raising events.

For the end of the year field trips, students may become ineligible if they have exhibited inappropriate behavior during the school year, poor attendance, excessive tardiness and lack of effort in academic performance. Parents and students are notified in advance if there is a concern about attendance. It is important that all students have the opportunity to attend.

Advance approval by the Superintendent is required for any student trip involving late night or overnight travel. Any student or staff member planning late night or overnight travel should consult the school committee policy on late night and overnight travel prior to making any travel arrangements.

Grade Level Teams/Schedule Organization

Grade 5 Students are on a grade level mini-team with one teacher responsible for humanities and one teacher responsible for math and science. Students also have a dedicated crew leader. There are two periods of Exploratory Arts classes per day. The classes are: art, general music, health, library, physical education, and technology.

Grade 6 Students are on a grade level team with a teacher responsible for each of the subject areas — math, science, social studies, literature non-fiction, and literature fiction. Students also have a dedicated crew leader. There are two periods of Exploratory Arts classed per day. The classes are: art, foreign language, general music, health, physical education and technology.

Grade 7 Students are on a grade level team with a teacher responsible for each of the subject areas — math, science, social studies, English language arts, and foreign language. Students also have a dedicated crew leader. There are two periods of Exploratory Arts classed per day. The classes are: art, general music, health, physical education and technology.

Grade 8 Students are on a grade level team with a teacher responsible for each of the subject areas — math, science, social studies, English language arts, and foreign language. Students also have a dedicated crew leader. There are two periods of Exploratory Arts classed per day. The classes are: art, general music, health, physical education and technology.

All students in Fifth and Sixth grade take performance music: band, chorus, or orchestra.

Students in Seventh and Eighth grades may take a performance music – band, chorus and orchestra – during one of their exploratory periods.

Grading System

We use a percentage system for grading for sixth through eighth grade. The fifth grade uses a letter system, and fifth and sixth grade exploratory classes are taken on a pass basis. A grade of 80 and higher, or a B, constitutes proficiency in a class, and a grade of 90 and higher, or an A, constitutes mastery. Any assessment below a 70 or a C will be reported as an INT

intervention grade. Students receiving an INT in a course will get supports in the next term to bring them closer to proficiency. Families may view grades throughout the term by utilizing their PowerSchool account. Several educators will be piloting a Proficiency Based Feedback approach that uses a rubric instead of number grades, which will also be available to review in PowerSchool.

Homework

The term "homework" refers to an assignment to be prepared during a period of supervised study in class or outside of class. The purposes of homework are to improve the learning processes, to aid in the mastery of skills, and to create and stimulate interest on the part of the student. Homework is a learning activity which should increase in complexity with the maturity of the student.

With increased maturity, learning should become an independent activity. This should be established through consistent assignments which encourage students to investigate for themselves and to work independently as well as with others. Homework assignments should be consistent in terms of the amount given each day and the time required for each assignment so that a pattern of meaningful homework can be established by the teacher and/or the student. The information for any homework assignment should be clear and specific so that the student can complete the assignment.

Homework assignments should take into consideration individual differences of students such as health, ability, conditions at home, and educational resources at home. Homework should not require the use of reference materials not readily available in most homes, school libraries, or the public library, and should require the use of those materials only when the student has had instruction in the use of them.

There are many other learning activities in the life of a student besides homework. Such things as participating in school activities, pursuing cultural interests, participating in family living, and exploring personal interests should be considered by teachers when planning consistent assignments. Homework is not to be used as a form of punishment under any circumstances. (See Section I Policy IKB of the BHRSD Policy Book for full policy)

Power School

PowerSchool is a web based student information system that enables educators to create a collaborative environment for parents, teachers and students to work together in preparing 21st century learners for the future. For assistance accessing your student's information in PowerSchool please contact Debra Spence in our guidance department. Teachers shall within a reasonable time update grade reports within PowerSchool.

Honor Roll

In order to achieve high honor status a student must have an average of 90 with no grades lower than 85. Honors is earned by having an average of 85 with no grades lower than 80. All subjects receiving a numerical grade count toward the average. Honor Roll is determined for 7th and 8th grade only.

Extra Help

W. E. B. Du Bois remains open after regular school hours for any student requiring extra help or choosing to complete homework assignments. Students should connect with the teacher a day ahead to verify availability. Students must arrange their own transportation and should be picked up no later than 3:30 pm.

General Education Team Meeting

Team teachers meet regularly to coordinate instruction and to review the progress of their students. Parents can arrange to meet with their child's team by contacting your child's crew leader via e-mail or voice mail.

School Activities

During the year there will be special activities designed for teams and/or specific grade levels. Information regarding these events will be found on our calendar and website. Most of these events are chaperoned by staff who volunteer their time. Should you wish to help chaperone please call the school. Prompt pick up at the end of the event is greatly appreciated.

Parent Involvement

There are numerous ways parents can become involved with the school. Parents are welcome to offer after school activities, supervise an after school homework club, chaperone field trips and dances, and become involved in more structured activities. Parents are required to complete a CORI form prior to involvement. Please contact the main office at 644-2300 for help with the process. You also may want to become involved in one of the following groups.

School Council – This is a representative, school building based committee composed of the principal, parents, teachers and community members that is required to be established pursuant to M>G>L. Chapter 71, section 59c. The DBRMS School Council meets monthly. The meeting schedule is posted on the website and on the Week at a Glance.

Parental Support and Fundraising Groups

The Berkshire Hills Regional School District (BHRSD) is appreciative of and thankful for the support parental groups provide for co-curricular and athletic activities. Parents come as spectators, volunteers, and fundraisers. Their support provides a sense of community for our students and as volunteers they often provide the extra hand needed to accomplish an activity.

Financially their fundraising provides many enrichment activities for our students. It is important to recognize that the BHRSD does not audit or provide accounting for their financial records.

To help ensure the credibility of these organizations and that of the school district the BHRSD will develop a set of financial accounting recommendations. Annually each organization will need to submit a document of assurance to the district that they are following the recommendations. In exchange, the BHRSD will allow them to use, subject to applicable district

policy, the school/district name, our facilities and appropriate equipment, as well as publicize their activities.

Website

Parents will find a great deal of information on our district and school website. Please check out www.bhrsd.org. and click on the W. E. B. Du Bois link. After school events and other school news will also be available there. Bookmark our site and check in daily! Please let us know what other information would be helpful as we continue updating our pages.

Week at a Glance

Each Friday an overview of the upcoming week is sent to parents who have an email listed. Paper copies are distributed to students without an e-mail address. The Week at a Glance talks about upcoming events and provides the school lunch menus.

Project Connection

Project Connection is an extended school day and school year program that involves activities with an academic component built in to the curriculum. We focus on experiential learning with many hands on programs that incorporate some of the many different Massachusetts Common Core Standards that we are working on all year long through the traditional school day. Programs run from 3:30-5:00 and transportation is provided for those students that need. You can reach Project Connection by e-mail at projectconnection@bhrsd.org or by phone at (413) 644-2300 extension 3306.

Student Services

Special Education and 504

A student may be referred for an evaluation by a parent or any person in a care giving or professional position concerned with the student's development.

When a student is referred for an evaluation to determine eligibility for special education, the special education director will send written notice to the student's parents within 5 school days of receipt of the referral. The notice shall seek the consent of the parent for the evaluation to occur, and provide the parent with the opportunity to express any concerns or provide information on the student's skills or abilities. The parent will have the opportunity to consult with the special education director or his/her designee to discuss the reasons for the referral, the content of the proposed evaluation, and the evaluators.

Upon consent of the parent, the school district shall provide an evaluation of the student within 30 school days. We will ensure that evaluators are appropriately credentialed and trained to administer all assessments. Each person conducting an assessment shall summarize in writing, the procedures employed, the results, and shall define the student's needs and recommendations for meeting those needs. A team meeting will be held within 45 school days of receipt of consent for evaluation, to determine eligibility for special education. The special education team shall consist of all evaluators, the student's regular education teacher, a special education teacher, an administrator, the parent and anyone else relevant to the process. If you have

questions or would like more information, please call Ms. Kate Burdsall, Director of Student Services. at 298-4017, ext.14.

Some students with disabilities may be entitled to services and other accommodations under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act. To qualify as a disabled individual under Section 504, a student must: 1) have a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities; 2) have a record of such an impairment, or 3) be regarded as having such an impairment. To qualify for a 504 Plan, an individual must fit into qualification # 1 and require services and other accommodations to meet their educational needs as adequately as the needs of nondisabled students are met. The determination of such qualification shall be made by a team of persons knowledgeable about the disability and/or the student. A parent/guardian/teacher, as well as other individuals like the student's physician, may refer the student for an evaluation under Section 504. A complete copy of the Parent's/Guardian's procedural rights under Section 504 may be obtained from the guidance department's office.

Homebound Instruction

(Educational Services in the Home Or Hospital)

Upon receipt of a physician's written order verifying that any student enrolled in the Berkshire Hills Regional School District or placed by the district in a private setting must remain at home or in a hospital on a day or overnight basis, or any combination of both, for medical reasons and for a period of not less than 14 school days in any school year, the principal shall arrange for provision of educational services in the home or hospital. Such services shall be provided with sufficient frequency to allow the student to continue his or her educational program, as long as such services do not interfere with the medical needs of the student. The principal shall coordinate such services with the Director of Student Services for eligible students. (Section I, Policy IHBF of the BHRSD Policy Book)

Service Animals

BHRSD acknowledges its responsibility to permit students and/or adults with disabilities to be accompanied by a "service animal" in its school buildings, in classrooms, and at school functions, as required by the American with Disabilities Act (28CFR 35.136(a)).

Assistive Technology

Students on an IEP or 504 Plan may qualify for an Assistive Technology Evaluation and, on the basis of the evaluation, may benefit from the use of assistive technology in school, at home, or both. Regardless of setting, assistive technology remains the property of BHRSD and parents/guardians/adult students will be required to sign an agreement regarding the use of assistive technology prior to using it within their homes. Additional information will be provided by individual students' IEP or 504 Teams.

Equal access to all Aspects of K-12 Program

The district evaluates all aspects of its K-12 program annually to ensure that all students, regardless of race, color, sex, gender identity, religion, national origin, limited English proficiency, sexual orientation, disability, or housing status, have equal access to all programs, including athletics and other extracurricular activities.

Title VI: 42 U.S.C. 2000d; 34 CFR 100.3(b)(2); EEOA: 20 U.S.C. 1703(f); Section 504: 29 U.S.C. 794; 34 CFR 104.4(b)(4); Title II: 42 U.S.C. 12132; 28 CFR 35.130(b)(3); NCLB: Title III, Part A, Sec. 3121(c)(1)(C); Title X, Part C, Sec. 722(g)(1)(J)(i), 722(g)(7); Mass. Const. amend. art. 114; M.G.L. c. 71A, § 7; c. 76, § 5; 603 CMR 26.07(1),(4) as amended by Chapter 199 of the Acts of 2011

Non-Discrimination Statement

Public schools have the responsibility to overcome, insofar as possible, any barriers that prevent children from achieving their potential. The public school system will do its part. The District's policy of nondiscrimination will extend to students, staff, the general public, and individuals with whom it does business; No person shall be excluded from or discriminated against in admission to a public school of any town or in obtaining the advantages, privileges, and courses of study of such public school on account of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, sexual orientation or disability. (See Section A, Policy AC of the BHRSD Policy Book for more information)

Parental Notification Law

The Massachusetts Parental Notification Law ensures that parents and guardians are notified about any curriculum that primarily involves human sexuality education or human sexuality issues. The law also states that parents are permitted to exempt their children from any portion of that curriculum without penalty.

Sex ed at W. E. B. Du Bois is part of our health curriculum.

Transfer of Parental Rights

The Berkshire Hills Regional School District informs students and families regarding the age of majority through the Team process and by written notice to all special education students and their parents, one year prior to age 18.

Family Educational Rights and Privacy and Student Records Act

Both Massachusetts and the federal government have laws that exist to insure parents' and students' rights of confidentiality, inspection, amendment, and destruction of student records, and to assist school authorities in their responsibilities for the maintenance of school records. In Massachusetts, those laws are found at G.L. c.71, §§ 34A, 34D, 34E, and 34H and at 603 CMR 23.00. The federal student records law is called the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act and is found at 20 U.S.C. section 1232g; 34 CFR 99, further information is available at the link below: http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/ferpa/index.html

The following definitions apply to these subsections:

Authorized School Personnel (CMR)/ School Officials (FERPA):

School administrators, teachers, counselors, special education team members, clerical personnel, and other professionals who are employed by the school committee or who are providing services to the student under an agreement between the school committee and a service provider, and who are working directly with the student in an administrative, teaching, counseling, and/or

diagnostic capacity. It includes attorneys, contractors, electronic/online vendors, consultants, volunteers, interns, or other parties to whom the school has outsourced institutional services or functions.

Legitimate Educational Interest:

Authorized School Personnel/ School Officials have a legitimate education interest in a student record when access to that record is necessary in order to fulfill his/ her professional responsibilities.

Eligible Students:

Any student who is 14 years of age or older or who has entered ninth grade, unless the School Committee has acting pursuant to 603 CMR 23.01(4) extends the rights and provisions of 603 CMR 23.00 to students under the age of 14 or to students who have not yet entered ninth grade.

Release of educational information by the school:

Generally, schools must have written permission from the parent or eligible student in order to release any information from a student's education record, and parents may consent to the disclosure of educational records to any third party. However, FERPA and Massachusetts student records laws allow schools to disclose those records, without consent, to the following parties or under the following conditions:

- Other schools to which a student is transferring (please note that our schools will also request and receive student records from the school of origin for students transferring into the District, and will be able to receive these records without additional consent upon receiving notice that the student will be enrolling in the District);
- Authorized School Personnel/ School Officials, when they have a legitimate educational interest in the materials.
- Administrative office staff and clerical personnel who are either employed by the school committee or are employed under a school committee service contract, and whose duties require them to have access to student records for purposes of processing information for the student record:
- Specified officials for audit, enforcement, or evaluation purposes, provided that except when collection of personally identifiable data is specifically authorized by law, any data collected by such officials shall be protected so that parties other than such officials and their authorized agents cannot personally identify such students and their parents;
- Local and state health department personnel to student health records, when such access is required in the performance of official duties;
- Appropriate parties in connection with financial aid to a student;
- Organizations conducting certain studies for or on behalf of the school;
- Accrediting organizations;
- To comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena;
- Appropriate officials in cases of health and safety emergencies; and
- State and local authorities, within a juvenile justice system, pursuant to specific State law.

Under 603 CMR 23.07(4)(a) a school may release the following "directory" information without prior consent: "a student's name, address, telephone listing, date and place of birth, major field of study, dates of attendance, weight and height of members of athletic teams, class, participation

in officially recognized activities and sports, degrees, honors and awards, and post-high school plans." Parents and eligible students may request that this information not be released without prior consent.

As referenced in 603 CMR 23.07(4)(g), the District forwards education records to other agencies or institutions that have requested the records and in which the student seeks or intends to enroll or is already enrolled so long as the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's enrollment or transfer.

Under section 37L of G.L., c. 71, any student transferring into a new school district must provide the new district with "a complete school record," including but not limited to, "any incidents involving suspension or violation of criminal acts or any incident reports in which such student was charged with any suspended act."

Please also note that all student records will be destroyed 30 days after the student's graduation from MMRHS or 30 days after transferring to another school. **This handbook hereby provides students and parents/ guardians with notice of destruction of records.** Parents/ guardians/ adult students are encouraged to request and procure student records from the central office within 30 days of a student's graduation or transfer to another school.

The following records will be kept electronically, replacing paper files, beginning in the 2022-2023 school year:

- report cards
- transcripts
- attendance records
- discipline records
- health records
- Section 504 records
- custody documents
- records from bullying/harassment investigations

All special education documents will be on file, hard copy, in the Office of Student Services as well as electronically in PowerSchool Special Programs.

Email communication will be kept through the current school year. Parents will have 30 days to request emails at the end of a school year prior to the destruction (deletion) of the email communications.

Right of Access Inspection and Request for Amendment of Records by Custodial Parents and Eligible Students

Pursuant to 603 CMR 23.07, parents and eligible students shall be given access to the student record within ten days after the initial request and have the right to inspect the records. Upon request, school officials will meet with the parent/eligible student to interpret the records. The parent/eligible student also has a right to have the records inspected by third parties.

Parents/ eligible students may also add information, comments, data, or other relevant information to the student record. They may submit written requests for amendment or deletion

of all educational records, with the exception of records entered by a special education evaluation team. If parents/eligible students wish to have special education records amended or deleted, they may request a meeting with the school principal or his/her designee, or the special education team to discuss their concerns.

Non-Custodial Parental Request for Student Records

G..L. c. 71, § 34H

Any parent who by court order does not have physical custody is considered a non-custodial parent. A non-custodial parent may have access to the student record in accordance with law and Department of Education regulations, found at 603 CMR 23.07. A non-custodial parent requesting information shall submit a written request to the school principal.

Any parent who does not have physical custody shall be eligible to receive access to the student record unless:

- Parent's access is currently prohibited by temporary or permanent protective order, unless this order specifies access to such information.
- The parent is denied visitation; or, based on threat to safety of the child, is currently denied legal custody, or is court-ordered to be under supervised visits, and such threat is specifically noted in the custody or visitation order.
- There is an order of a probate and family court judge which prohibits the distribution of student records to the parent.

Once a request is received, the school shall review the student's records for any documentation limiting or restricting the non-custodial parent's access to the information or records. The district shall notify the custodial parent of the request by certified mail in both primary language of the custodial parent and in English that it will provide the information after 21 days, unless the custodial parent provides the principal with documentation that the parent is not eligible for the information. Such documentation includes:

- A court order prohibiting contact with the student, as outlined above;
- A (temporary or permanent) court order plainly prohibiting the distribution of information to provide protection to the student from abuse by the requesting parent; and
- Subsequent orders modifying a protective order that would otherwise allow such access. In this case, the custodial parent must contact the school to notify administration of any such modified court orders and provide documentation thereof.

If the custodial parent responds and provides any of the above documents, these records are to be placed in the student's file. If the custodial parent does not produce such documentation, the student records will be provided to the non-custodial parent, except that all electronic and postal address and telephone numbers relating to work or home of the custodial parent shall be removed from the records sent. Furthermore, student records provided to a non-custodial parent will be stamped to indicate that they cannot be used to enroll the student in school elsewhere.

If a student is the subject of any temporary/permanent custody order, decree, or agreement, a copy of the custody order, decree or agreement – either signed by the judge of the probate court in the case of an order or decree or signed by both parents in the case of an agreement – must be provided to the main office.

These orders are important for determining access to the student's records, the right to have the student dismissed into the care of an individual, the right of access to a student's teacher and similar issues. Parents are responsible for notifying the school of any changes in the custody order, decree, or agreement.

These records are to be placed in the student's file. Each elementary and secondary school shall provide student records within ten days including, but not limited to:

- Report cards and Progress Reports
- Results of standardized testing
- Notice of referral for special education evaluation
- Notification of enrollment in ESL program (Chapter 71A)
- Notification of absences and illnesses
- Notification of detentions, suspensions, or expulsions
- Notification of permanent withdrawal from school

Upon receiving oral or written notice that the student seeks or intends to transfer to another school, the District will send a student's records to the school to which a student seeks or intends to transfer. The District does not require the consent of the eligible student or parent to forward these records.

Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment

The Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment (PPRA) requires that the school notifies you to obtain consent or allow you to opt out of the following school activities: a student survey, analysis, or evaluation that concerns one or more of the following eight areas ("protected information surveys"):

- 1. Political affiliations or beliefs of the student or student's parent;
- 2. Mental or psychological problems of the student or student's family;
- 3. Sex behavior or attitudes; illegal, anti-social, self-incriminating, or demeaning behavior;
- 4. Critical appraisals of others with whom respondents have close family relationships;
- 5. Legally recognized privileged relationships, such as with lawyers, doctors, or ministers;
- 6. Religious practices, affiliations, or beliefs of the student or parents; or
- 7. Income, other than as required by law to determine program eligibility.

This requirement also applies to the collection, disclosure or use of student information for marketing purposes ("marketing surveys"), and certain physical exams and screenings.

The District will provide parents, within a reasonable period of time prior to the administration of the surveys and activities, a notification of the surveys and activities and be provided an opportunity to opt their child out, as well as an opportunity to review the surveys. (Please note that this notice and consent/opt-out transfers from parents to any student who is 18 years old or an emancipated minor under State law).

Any allegations of FERPA violations relating to the above sections may be directed to the U.S. Department of Education's Family Compliance Office, located at 400 Maryland Avenue, SW, Washington, DC 20202.

Homeless Education Act

According to the Federal McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Act, schools are required to immediately enroll homeless students in school, even if they do not have the documents usually required for enrollment, such as school records, medical records or proof of residency. There are similar protections under Title I of the Every Student Succeeds Act for foster care students. For additional information regarding the education of homeless students, please contact the homeless liaison coordinator, Kathryn Burdsall For information regarding foster care students, please contact the DCF liaison Kathryn Burdsall. The BHRSD prohibits discrimination or harassment based on homelessness. Any complaints of discrimination or harassment based on homelessness may be reported to the homeless liaison and will be investigated using the same process and steps as the District's non-discrimination procedures.

English Language Education

The goal of the English Language Education (ELE) program of the Berkshire Hills Regional School District is to support the progress of LEP (Limited English Proficient) students in the four English language domains of reading, writing, listening, and speaking. These students (known as English Language Learners (ELL)) receive content instruction in English at the appropriate academic and grade level. Any newly enrolled student with a language other than English spoken at home will be assessed for English Language Proficiency within 30 days of enrollment at school. Based on the results, students will be placed in a regular education classroom/schedule with support services in English as a Second Language as needed.

All parents have the right to waive ESL services. Information on the waiver procedure is available through the principal of each school. A language Assessment Team (LAT) will convene once a student is identified as LEP. The LAT may include, but is not limited to: parent/guardian, principal, guidance counselor and/or school psychologist, ELL coordinator, teachers, and interpreter (when possible and if necessary). During that meeting, a specific education plan and schedule for the year will be developed. Programming options available to students are documented in the student/parent handbook. The mini-handbook (in Spanish and English) for students eligible for ELE services and their parents/guardians also provides information about ELE programming options and legislative rights.

All students will be assessed annually for progress. Once deemed fluent in spoken and written English. The student (now known as FLEP=formerly Limited English proficient) will be exited from the ELE program and monitored for at least one year to insure continued progress. (See Section I, Policy IHBE of the BHRSD Policy Book for full policy)

Equal Educational Opportunities

In recognition of the diversified characteristics and needs of our students and with the keen desire to be responsive to them, the School Committee will make every effort to protect the dignity of the students as individuals. It also will offer careful consideration and sympathetic

understanding of their personal feelings, particularly with reference to their race, creed, sex, religion, nationality, and physical and intellectual differences.

To accomplish this, the Committee and its staff will make every effort to comply with the letter and the spirit of the Massachusetts equal educational opportunities law (known as Chapter 622 of the Acts of 1971), which prohibits discrimination in public school admissions and programs. The law reads as follows:

No child shall be excluded from or discriminated against in admission to a public school of any town, or in obtaining the advantages, privileges and course of study of such public school on account of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, gender identity or sexual orientation, disability or homelessness.

This will mean that every student will be given equal opportunity in school admission, admissions to courses, course content, guidance, and extracurricular and athletic activities.

All implementing provisions issued by the Board of Education in compliance with this law will be followed. (See Section J, Policy JB of the BHRSD Policy Book for full policy)

No Child Left Behind

The Federal *No Child Left Behind* Act of 2001 (also known as NCLB) requires that all school districts receiving Title 1 funding must notify parents of the right to know about the professional qualifications of the classroom teachers who instruct their child(ren). The specifics of the law are as follows.

- Parents/Guardians have the right to request information about the professional qualifications of the classroom teacher
 - Whether a teacher has met State qualifications and licensing criteria at the grade level and subject areas in which the teacher is providing instruction
 - o Whether the teacher is teaching under an emergency license or waiver.
 - The baccalaureate degree major of the teacher and any other graduate certifications or degrees held by the teacher, and the field or discipline of the certification or degree.
 - And, whether the child is provided services by a paraprofessional, and if so, his/her qualifications.
- Parents also have the right to know if their child is taught by a teacher for four or more
 weeks who is not "highly qualified" (a term that is specifically defined by NCLB to mean
 that a teacher must be certified in the area in which he/she is teaching). This notification
 will come directly from the school to all parents whose children are impacted by this
 decision.

Berkshire Hills Regional School District is committed to providing quality instruction for all students and does so by employing the most qualified individuals to teach and support each student in the classroom. If you would like to receive any of the information listed above for your child's teacher, please contact the building principal. If you have additional questions regarding NCLB, please do not hesitate to call the building principal.

Health and Wellness

Wellness Policy

It is the goal of Berkshire Hills Regional School District (BHRSD) for every student to have the necessary skills and knowledge to actualize healthy and satisfying lives. We believe that wellness is a multi-faceted concept that is best learned through practice and from modeling of healthy behaviors by adults in the school, family and community. We define wellness as a condition of health that is the result of proper nutrition, exercise and other personal habits that contribute to a sound mind and body. Therefore it is the policy of BHRSD to ensure that each student has equitable access to program, activities and classes that promote physical, social-emotional and mental wellbeing. These programs will be consistent with, but not limited by the Massachusetts Department of Education (MA DOE) Health curriculum frameworks for content (www.mass.edu/frameworks) and the National Health & Physical Education Standards for skills (www.educationworld.com/standards/national).

Wellness Committee

BHRSD will establish a Wellness Committee that should involve parents, students, nurse, Food Service Director, school committee member, health teacher, physical education teacher, school administrator, members of the public, and other community members as appropriate. The Wellness Committee will enact a plan, to be approved by the Superintendent, to oversee implementation and evaluation of the Wellness Policy.

Nutrition Guidelines

It is the policy of the school district that all foods and beverages made available on campus during the school day are consistent with School Lunch Program nutrition guidelines. Guidelines for reimbursable school meals will not be less restrictive than regulations and guidance issued by the Secretary of Agriculture pursuant to law. The district will:

- Establish separate guidelines for foods and beverages in the following categories:
 - o foods and beverages included in a la carte sales in the food service program on school campuses
 - o foods and beverages sold in vending machines, snack bars, school stores and concession stands
 - o foods and beverages sold as part of school-sponsored fundraising activities
 - o refreshments served at parties, celebrations and meetings during the school day
 - o specify that its guidelines will be based on nutrition goals, not profit motives
- Participate, to the maximum extent possible, in federal school meals programs (including the School Breakfast Program, National School Lunch Program – www.fns.usda.gov).
 - Provide to all children who participate in subsidized food programs the ability to obtain food in a non-stigmatizing manner.
 - Provide students with access to a variety of affordable nutritious, appealing and fresh foods that meet and exceed health and nutritional needs of students as outlined by the Nutrition Standards and U.S. Dietary Guidelines. (www.nal.usda.gov/fnic/dga)

- Develop guidelines for maximizing nutritional value by decreasing fat and added sugars, increasing nutrition density and moderating portion size of each individual food or beverage sold within the school environment.
- Provide adequate time, with a minimum of 20 minutes sit down time, for students to eat lunch at appropriate times, no earlier than 10:45 and no later than 1:00 pm, in the school schedule in clean, safe, and pleasant settings.
- Refrain from using food as a reward/ punishment. This is not meant to exclude foods for celebration and special events.

Nutrition and Physical Education

The school district will provide nutrition education and physical education aligned with the standards established by the MA DOE.

Nutrition Education

- Provide sequential, interdisciplinary nutritional education to foster healthy lifelong habits and promote comprehensive wellness learning in each grade from pre-K to12.
- Enhance nutrition education using locally grown foods whenever possible
- Promote regional partnerships between health agencies, health education resources, food suppliers, school meal programs, and other community resources.
- Send consistent nutrition messages from all aspects of the school program to student and families.
- Encourage parents/guardians to support healthy food choices and habits for their children.

Physical Education Activities

- Provide sequential, interdisciplinary physical education to foster healthy lifelong habits and promote comprehensive wellness learning in each grade from pre-K to12.
- Refrain from using the denial and the imposition of physical activity as a punishment in all school related activities.
- Give students opportunities for daily physical activity during the school day through physical education (PE) classes, daily recess periods for elementary school students, and the integration of physical activity into the academic curriculum where appropriate.
- Provide opportunities for physical activity through a range of before- and/or afterschool programs including, but not limited to, intramurals, interscholastic athletics, and physical activity clubs.
- Provide opportunities, encouragement and support for all preK-12 students to be physically active on a daily basis and achieve the recommended health-related physical fitness standards.
- Design curriculum that promotes the acquisition of lifelong physical activities, i.e. walking programs, cross-country skiing
- Encourage parents and guardians to support their children's participation in physical
 activity, to be physically active role models, and to include physical activity in family
 events.

Social/Emotional Activities

- Students will be provided sequential, interdisciplinary social-emotional education to foster healthy lifelong habits and promote comprehensive wellness learning in each grade from pre-K to12.
- Students will understand the benefit of adequate sleep as it relates to readiness for learning and overall health and will learn to identify patterns of behavior that promote healthy sleep cycles, including types and timing of activities prior to sleep and nutritional relationships to sleep.
- Students shall learn to define relaxation and be able to understand its relationship to overall health and well-being. Additionally, students will be able to identify what type(s) of activities may encourage relaxation and will learn methods for promoting it in their own lives.

Other Wellness Activities

- Communication with parents/guardians, staff and students is essential. We will seek opportunities, to educate the school community on trends and information related to health and wellness. We will encourage community partnerships that assist the district in this effort.
- We will engage students, parents, teachers, food service professionals, health professionals, and other interested community members in developing, implementing, monitoring and reviewing district-wide nutrition, nutrition education, physical activity and social-emotional programs and policies and other wellness initiatives.
- We will consider and implement the when appropriate, environmentally-friendly practices such as the use of locally grown and seasonal foods, school gardens, recycling and composting.
- We will consider and implement when appropriate, physical activities and/or nutrition services or programs designed to benefit staff health.

Evaluation:

The Superintendent, Director of Food Services and Building Administration are charged with operational responsibility for ensuring the district meets the BHRSD Wellness Policy (ADF). The Wellness Committee will report annually to the BHRSD Superintendent, who will submit the report to the School Committee.

Leg Ref: Section 204 of Public Law 108-265 Child Nutrition and WIC Reauthorization Act 2004

Concussion Management

Student/ athletes and Parents are required to read and sign off on the Concussion and Opioid fact sheets prior to athletic participation.

Assumption of Risk

All student/ athletes and parents must realize that participation in sports carries a risk of injury including possible concussion, and, by agreeing to participate in athletic activities and signing a parental permission form on behalf of their children/ themselves, they thereby assume the risks of

such injury. It is imperative that extreme care and attention be used at all times by all parties. Specific provisions for exercising care can be found below and on this Website: [http://www.cdc.gov/headsup/index.html].

Concussion Management and Return to Play Requirements "When in Doubt- Sit It Out"

"A concussion is a complex disturbance in brain function, due to direct or indirect trauma to the head, related to neurometabolic dysfunction, rather than structural injury. Even a "ding," "getting your bell rung," or what seems to be a mild bump or blow to the head can be serious. Concussions can also result from a fall or from players colliding with each other or with obstacles, such as a goalpost." (Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 2009).

Part I: Signs and Symptoms of a Concussion

A concussion should be suspected if any one or more of the following signs or symptoms are present, or if the coach/evaluator is unsure.

- 1. Signs of a concussion may include (what the athlete looks like) the following:
- Confusion / disorientation / irritability
- Act silly / combative / aggressive
- Trouble resting / getting comfortable
- Repeatedly ask same questions
- Lack of concentration
- Dazed appearance
- Slow response / drowsiness
- Restless / irritable
- Incoherent / slurred speech
- Constant attempts to return to play
- Slow / clumsy movements
- Constant motion
- Loss of consciousness
- Disproportionate / inappropriate reactions
- Amnesia / memory problems
- Balance problems
- 2. Symptoms of a concussion may include (what the athlete reports) the following:
- Headache or dizziness
- Over sensitivity to sound / light / touch
- Nausea or vomiting
- Ringing in ears
- Blurred or double vision
- Feeling foggy or groggy

Note: DPH regulation 105 CRM 201 requires that a coach MUST immediately remove a student/ athlete from participating in any intramural or interscholastic athletic activity who (A) is observed to exhibit signs, symptoms or behaviors consistent with a concussion or (B) is

diagnosed with a concussion regardless of when such concussion or head injury may have occurred or (C) sustains a head injury or suspected concussion. Under this regulation, coaches must also prohibit student/ athletes from engaging in any unreasonably dangerous athletic techniques and encourage techniques designed to promote safety. Failure to comply with this regulation may result in penalties including, but not limited to, personnel sanctions and the forfeiture of games.

Additionally, coaches, licensed athletic trainers, trainers, volunteers, school and team physicians, school nurses, athletic directors, marching band directors, students engaged in athletic activities and their parents must annually read, sign, and acknowledge understanding and receipt of DPH approved concussion education materials provided by the school. While this information provides a useful reference regarding indicators of concussion in student/ athletes, it is not a substitute for reading, signing, and acknowledging receipt of those materials.

Part II: Return to Participation (RTP)

Currently, it is impossible to accurately predict how long concussions will last. There must be full recovery before someone is allowed to return to participation. Massachusetts Law now requires that no athlete may resume participation until they have received written medical clearance from a licensed health care professional (Physician or the following individuals in consultation with a licensed physician: Nurse Practitioner, Physician Assistant, Neuropsychologist or Athletic Trainer). Therefore, the following procedures will apply when a Pre-Participation Head Injury/ Concussion Form reveals a recent prior concussion (beginning with procedure 5) or when a concussion occurs during the sports season:

Concussion management requirements:

- 1. No student/ athlete SHALL return to participation (RTP) on the same day of concussion.
- 2. The coach shall communicate the nature of the injury directly to the parent in person or by phone and the licensed athletic trainer immediately after the practice or competition in which a student/ athlete has been removed from play for a head injury, suspected concussion, signs and symptoms of a concussion, or loss of consciousness. The coach or licensed athletic trainer also must provide this information to the parent in writing in English and in the language of the home on the Report of Head Injury during Sports Season Form, whether paper or electronic format, by the end of the next business day. If the athlete is injured during the season but not while involved in any school athletic or extra-curricular activity, the parent must complete the Report of Head Injury during Sports Season Form and provide it to the student/ athlete's licensed athletic trainer/ coach.
- 3. The licensed athletic trainer/coach shall communicate, prior to the next school day with the Athletic Director and school nurse that the student/ athlete has been removed from practice or competition for a head injury, suspected concussion, signs and symptoms of a concussion, or loss of consciousness. The licensed athletic trainer/coach will provide the Report of Head Injury during Sports Season Form to the nurse and Director of Athletics. The school nurse will contact the student's teacher and guidance counselors.

- 4. If a student/ athlete is suspected of having a head injury or concussion, the student/ athlete will be referred immediately to their primary care physician or the emergency room and will be given a symptom checklist for review by medical personnel. Any loss of consciousness, vomiting or seizures the student/ athlete MUST be immediately transported to the hospital. Any student/ athlete with signs or symptoms related to a concussion MUST be evaluated from a licensed health care professional Physician or the following individuals in consultation with a licensed physician: Nurse Practitioner, Physician Assistant, Neuropsychologist or Athletic Trainer). These individuals must have received the appropriate training to make certifications.
- 5. Each student/ athlete who is removed from practice or a competition and subsequently diagnosed with a concussion must have a graduated reentry plan to return to full academic and extracurricular activities. The plan will be developed by teachers, guidance counselor, school nurse, licensed athletic trainer if on staff, parent and the child's treating medical provider.
- 6. Close observation of a student/ athlete MUST continue following a concussion. This should be monitored for an appropriate amount of time following the injury to ensure that there is no escalation of symptoms.
- 7. Schools will follow the primary care physician's written orders concerning return to school and physical activity.
- 8. The student/ athlete MUST obtain written clearance from one of the licensed health care professionals mentioned above directing them into a well-defined RTP stepped protocol similar to one outlined below. If at any time signs or symptoms should return during the RTP progression the student/ athlete should cease activity*.
- 9. After the RTP protocol has been successfully administered (no longer exhibits any signs or symptoms or behaviors consistent with concussions), final written medical clearance is required by one of the licensed health care professionals mentioned above for them to fully return to unrestricted participation in practices and competitions. This clearance may be provided via a DPH Post Sports-Related Head Injury Medical Clearance Form or school-based equivalent.
- 10. The student/ athlete diagnosed with a concussion must be completely symptom free at rest in order to begin graduated reentry to extracurricular athletic activities. The student/ athlete must be symptom free at rest, during exertion, and with cognitive activity in order to complete the graduated re-entry plan and be medically cleared to play.

Medical Clearance RTP Protocol (Recommended one full day between steps)

Rehabilitation stage - Functional exercise at each stage of rehabilitation - Objective of each stage:

- 1. No activity Complete physical and cognitive rest until recovered and asymptomatic. School may need to be modified.
- 2. Light aerobic activity Walking, swimming or stationary cycling keeping Increase Heart Rate intensity, <70% of maximal exertion; no resistance training.
- 3. Sport Specific Exercise Skating drills in ice hockey, running drills in soccer Add Movement; no head contact.
- 4. Non-contact training Progression to more complex training drills, i.e., Exercise, coordination and

drills passing drills in football and ice hockey; may start cognitive load progressive resistance training.

- 5. Full Contact Practice Following medical clearance, participate normally Restore confidence and assess training activities functional skills by coaching staff.
- If at any time symptoms should return during the RTP progression the student/ athlete should stop activity that day. If the student/ athlete's symptoms are gone the next day, s/he may resume the RTP progression at the last step completed in which no symptoms were present. If symptoms return and don't resolve, the athlete should be referred back to their medical provider.

References:

- 1. NFHS. Concussions. 2008 NFHS Sports Medicine Handbook (Third Edition). 2008: 77-82. http://www.nfhs.org
- 2. McCrory, Paul MBBS, PhD; Meeuwisse, Willem MD, Phd; Johnston, Karen MD, PhD; Dvorak, Jiri MD; Aubry, Mark MD;

Molloy, Mick MB; Cantu, Robert MA, MD. Consensus Statement on Concussion in Sport 3rd International Conference on

Concussion in Sport held in Zurich, November 2008. Clinical Journal of Sport Medicine: May 2009 - Volume 19 - issue 3 -

pp 185-200

http://journals.www.com/cjsportsmed/Fulltext/2009/05000

Consensus Statement on Concussion in Sport 3rd.1.aspx

- 3. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Heads Up: Concussion in High School Sports. http://www.cdc.gov/NCIPC/tbi/Coaches Tool Kit.htm.
- 4. U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. A Fact Sheet for Coaches. (2009). Retrieved on June 16, 2010.

Http://www.cdc.gov/concussion/pdf/coaches Engl.pdf

Resources: C Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Injury Prevention & Control:

Traumatic Brain Injury. Retrieved on June 16, 2010.

http://www.cdc.gov/TraumaticBrainInjury/index.html

C Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Heads Up: Concussion in High School Sports Guide for Coaches. Retrieved on June 16, 2010.

Code of Conduct

Restorative Practices

Building discipline and the development of school culture are pursued through a program known as Restorative Practices at W. E. B. Du Bois. Restorative Practices are based on seven core assumptions.

- 1. The true self in everyone is good, wise and powerful.
- 2. The world is profoundly interconnected.
- 3. All human beings have a deep desire to be in good relationships.
- 4. All humans have gifts; everyone is needed for what they bring.
- 5. Everything we need to make a positive change in already here.

- 6. Human beings are holistic.
- 7. We need practices to build habits of living from the core self.

The Crew curriculum based on these core assumptions. Through a variety of team building activities and facilitated discussions, students are invited to determine how they can best help build up the culture of W. E. B. Du Bois. Crew allows students to practice participating in important and sometimes difficult conversations.

Through our Crew program students will decide what it means for them to be member of a school community. They will ask and analyze the question of what it means to be a responsible community member. They will try to understand what each one of us owes our community and what our community can do for us.

When the trust of the community is violated, we respond restoratively. Discipline in a restorative context focuses more on repairing the harm than on punishing the wrong-doer. We ask 'What and who were harmed?', 'What needs to be done to repair that harm?', and 'Who is obligated to repair that harm?'

Families are important partners in the restorative process. Especially in instances of serious harm, it is important that all students in a restorative circle feel they have advocates and allies in that circle. Families know their children the best. Your honest support and feedback in a restorative circle are a critical part in an effective restorative circle.

Attendance

If your child is going to be absent please call the office at 644-2300. Calls made by 9 A.M. are greatly appreciated. Please note the district has an attendance policy which states that family vacations during school time are an unexcused absence. Teachers are not required to provide work in advance of a trip. Upon returning to school it is the responsibility of the student to meet with the teacher to determine missed work and set a schedule for completion.

Excused Absences

All students are required by law to attend school every day that school is in session. From time to time, circumstances dictate that a student will need to be absent from school for reasons deemed necessary by district policy. Parents/ guardians have a legal responsibility to ensure their child is in attendance each day school is in session, unless he/she is absent for one of the following reasons:

- Illness persistent absences may require a note from a doctor.
- Bereavement.
- Documented medical or dental appointments.
- Documented court or legal commitments.
- Religious holidays.
- College visits.
- School field trips and programs.
- Disability-related reasons approved by a student's IEP or 504 Team.
- Other extenuating circumstances approved by the school administration.

Teachers are not authorized to excuse absences.

Unexcused Absences

All other reasons for an absence will be considered **unexcused** even if the student was given permission to miss school by their parent.

Massachusetts State Law specifies that a student under 16 years of age may not be absent more than six(6) unexcused day sessions in a six (6) month period. Students who willfully fail to attend class for more than eight (8) days are defined as habitually truant. Chronic absenteeism is defined in absences in excess of fifteen (15) excused or unexcused days. Parents are required under the law to ensure regular school attendance of their children and are subject to a fine or other legal action if they fail to comply with the law. The local school administration or designee will be provided with the names of students with seven or more unexcused absences during a sixmonth period.

Some examples of **unexcused absences** are, but not limited to:

- Family vacations/ trips unless the administration has granted approval for a documented educational experience or purpose
- Truancy
- Activities that should be conducted outside the school day, such as hair appointments, shopping,
 - sleeping, doing homework, etc.
- Activities more appropriately related to the parent/guardian, such as providing care for siblings.

absence due to parent transportation, etc.

Students' opportunity to gain a meaningful education is severely reduced if they choose not to attend school. Academic class work and tests missed while choosing to be truant or leaving the school grounds without permission may not be made up. They are recorded without credit.

Notification

Parents should notify the school by telephone each time their child is absent (excused or unexcused). The school administration or designee will determine if the absence is excused. If the parent does not call the school, school personnel will call the child's home, parent's workplace, or emergency contact to confirm the absence.

Make-up Missed Work

It is the responsibility of the student to contact their teachers or classmates through email to gather work on days missed. It is suggested that students make arrangements with their teacher either in person or through email to gather class assignments as soon as possible in the event of an absence and in advance when the absence is planned. As indicated above, students may also contact Guidance for assistance when they will be absent for more than two days.

Dismissals

In order for a student to be dismissed before the end of the school day, the parent or guardian must send a note from home with a phone number for verification. This note should be submitted to the Main Office prior to first period, or as soon as possible thereafter. The note should describe the reason for the early dismissal, the destination of the pupil and the time of the actual release. The administration will decide whether the reason for the early release is appropriate and where appropriate will give consent. All 18-year-old students who have completed the age of majority form must obtain administrative permission in order to leave school grounds during the academic day. If parent dismissals contribute to a pattern of absences that are excessive, W. E. B. Du Bois reserves the right to request a meeting between the school and student guardian to discuss the concern. Absences that result from a dismissal will be considered unexcused unless they meet the criteria for an excused absence, which are highlighted below.

Attendance Procedure

When absences occur within a six (6) month period, the following steps will be taken

Step 1: Five (5) days of unexcused absence:

- Principal or designee sends a letter home reminding parents of the attendance policy.
- At the discretion of the Principal, a follow up call is made to parents to further explain policy and -develop a plan for improved attendance.

Step 2: Seven (7) days of unexcused absence:

- Letter from Principal or his designee and follow up conversation between Principal or designee and family to discuss the child's pattern of unexcused absences. The letter states that further unexcused
 - absences may result in a referral to the Department of Children and Families and/ or Berkshire Juvenile Court.
- The administrator may suggest a meeting between parents and school staff to devise an attendance plan for the student and to discuss strategies to address the manifestation of the truancy issue.

Step 3: Ten (10) days of unexcused absence:

- Letter home indicating that the child has exceeded the legal limit.
- Principal or designee requests a formal meeting with parents to discuss ways the school and home can work together to resolve unacceptable number of unexcused absences.
- In the event that the parent fails to schedule and appear for a formal meeting within a two-week

period, the district will initiate truancy/negligence procedures as described below.

Step 4: Fifteen (15) days of unexcused absence:

- The District initiates a CRA (Children Requiring Assistance) or a Failure to Send Action with the Southern Berkshire Juvenile Court, and/ or a 51A filing for educational neglect with the Department of Children and Families (DCF).
- Written notification to parents.

Tardiness

Student Responsibility for Class Attendance

Students are expected to attend all regularly scheduled classes. As such, it is necessary to take reasonable steps to ensure that students are present for all scheduled classes. Any student who is reported absent from class, who is not *excused* absent or dismissed from school in accordance with the BHRSD Attendance Policy will be charged with a class cut. Three (3) tardies to class is equivalent to one absence. Additionally, each teacher will establish classroom and attendance procedures for his/her classes that support both attendance and participation. While these guidelines may vary depending on the nature of the course, they will align with the BHRSD Attendance Policy. In all cases, students who miss seven (7) scheduled class periods, excused or unexcused, in any course in a semester risk failing that class for the semester and, as a result, losing credit for the course.

Tardiness to Class

Tardiness occurs when a student is not in class when the bell sounds to signify the start of the class. It is a student's responsibility to be on time for class. With regard to tardiness, the classroom teacher sets and communicates his/her expectations, monitors the student's behavior, honors the efforts of punctual students, and disciplines when appropriate. In cases where, after repeated attempts to rectify the issue, the teacher's efforts to remediate classroom tardiness are unsuccessful, the student's name will be submitted to the administration for school appropriate next steps.

Tardiness to School

The school day starts at 8:00 a.m. with either Community or the first period academic class. Consistent with the school's positive behavior supports initiative, students are encouraged to take responsibility by being punctual to school and ready to learn. Parents are encouraged to review the school's bell schedule and attendance expectations with their student and to work with the school to alleviate and rectify tardiness or any attendance concerns before the concerns reach a chronic level. Thus, students tardy to school are in fact tardy to class. In keeping with school attendance practices, **three (3) tardies to school** is the equivalent of one class absence.

Bussing and Bus Expectations

Transportation of students to and from school is provided by Massini Bus Company. Questions regarding routes, students riding alternate busses and concerns should be addressed directly with the bus company at 413-229-7962. Please obtain permission from the bus company at least one day in advance when your child needs to ride a different bus. A note from home without bus company approval does not guarantee that your child will be able to ride an alternate bus. Because it is difficult to reach students at the end of the day, we ask that you notify the school of changes in your child's transportation no later than 2 P.M. There are no late busses, so students staying for extra help or school activities will need to be picked up promptly at the close of the activity. Please be aware that due to the number of students riding the bus it may not be possible for students to ride with large projects or instruments. Please call the bus company in advance if you have a question regarding this issue.

In accordance with BHRSD Policy EEA, the School Committee has responsibility for students while being transported on school buses. The building Principal(s) are designated by the Berkshire Hills Regional School District School Committee to act as its agent for the enforcement for the school bus transportation policy and as such the Principals have the same duties and responsibilities toward the students on the buses as they have toward these same students in a classroom situation. They also have the responsibility of advising and assisting the bus drivers in the maintenance of proper student behavior.

There are three main responsibilities involved with transportation:

- a) Ensuring the safety of all bus riders.
- b) Ensuring timely arrival and departure to and from school.
- c) Enforcement of school attendance laws.

To ensure the safety of all bus riders, it is recommended that the privilege of school bus transportation be subject to review and appropriate school action for any student whose conduct is such that it is distracting to the bus driver.

- a) The following offenses shall apply:
 - 1. Smoking, the use of drugs, alcohol, or any other contraband substance.
 - 2. Being in the possession of a firearm, knife, explosive, or any other weapon.
 - 3. Injury to another person.
 - 4. Fighting.
 - 5. Bullying, pushing, shoving, "horseplay", or any other activity that is distracting to the bus driver.
 - 6. Damaging property.
 - 7. Swearing, foul and/or abusive language.
 - 8. Refusing to follow reasonable instructions given by the bus driver that are directly related to the driver's authority and responsibility to ensure safe and secure transport of students.
- b) W. E. B. Du Bois uses the following procedure when suspected bus infractions are reported:
 - 1. **Investigation:** The Assistant Principal will investigate the claim, and the student will be afforded the right to due process. All school infractions, including bus infractions, will be handled on a case by case basis.
 - 2. **Restorative Practices:** In any case where a bus infraction is reported, administration will explore opportunities to restore relationships and trust between the student accused of the infraction and reporting parties. As with any case where restorative practices is applied, the Assistant Principal will determine the most appropriate application of restorative practices, and will base his or her decision following the outcome of the investigation.
 - 3. **Additional School Action:** In cases where additional school action is necessary, W. E. B. Du Bois can impose additional consequences, which will be determined based on factors such as the frequency of infractions, the severity of the infraction relative to bus safety, and any other factor specific to the bus infraction.

- c) Each infraction shall be reported by the bus driver to the administration (in writing) on the same day as the occurrence (if possible). It is the responsibility of each bus driver to include as much specific detail as is possible in each report he/she makes to the administration.
- d) Any report submitted by a school bus driver and verified by the school administration will be filed upon a bus behavior report, listing student name, age, description of offense, and action taken by the building administration. This report will be filed in each school, with copies sent to parents/guardians, bus driver and bus contractor.
- e) Denial of school bus transportation shall mean denial of the right to ride on all school buses, including but not limited to buses transporting students to athletic events or other extra-curricular activities.

Dress Expectations

The W.E.B. Du Bois Regional Middle School created this Model Dress Code to update and improve our student dress code guidelines and enforcement processes. Student dress codes should support equitable educational access and should not reinforce gender stereotypes. Student dress codes and administrative enforcement should not reinforce or increase marginalization or oppression of any group based on race, gender, ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, household income, gender identity or cultural observance. This Model Dress Code is specifically intended to address the concern both in our community and across the nation about overreaching and detrimental dress codes for some K-12 school students.

Our values are:

- All students should be able to dress comfortably for school without fear of or actual unnecessary discipline or body shaming.
- All students and staff should understand that they are responsible for managing their own personal "distractions" without regulating individual students' clothing/self expression.
- Teachers can focus on teaching without the additional and often uncomfortable burden of dress code enforcement.
- Students should not face unnecessary barriers to school attendance.
- Reasons for conflict and inconsistent discipline should be minimized whenever possible.

Dress Code Goals

A student dress code should accomplish several goals:

- Maintain a safe learning environment in classes where protective or supportive clothing is needed, such as chemistry/biology (eye or body protection), dance (bare feet, tights/leotards), or PE (athletic attire/shoes).
- Allow students to wear clothing of their choice that is comfortable.
- Allow students to wear clothing that expresses their self-identified gender.
- Allow students to wear religious attire without fear of discipline or discrimination.
- Prevent students from wearing clothing with offensive images or language, including profanity, hate speech, and pornography.
- Prevent students from wearing clothing with images or language depicting or advocating violence or the use of alcohol or drugs.

• Ensure that all students are treated equitably regardless of gender/gender identification, sexual orientation, race, ethnicity, body type/size, religion, and personal style.

Dress Code Guidelines

- The primary responsibility for a student's attire resides with the student and parents or guardians. The school district and individual schools are responsible for seeing that student attire does not interfere with the health or safety of any student, and that student attire does not contribute to a hostile or intimidating atmosphere for any student.
- Students should be given the most choice possible in how they dress for school. Any restrictions must be necessary to support the overall educational goals of the school and must be explained within the dress code.
- Districts should set the student dress code and enforcement policies for their entire district and take steps to ensure that all schools in the district adopt and follow it. Too often individual schools create their own student dress codes and enforce them in different ways that result in inequities within districts and in many cases policies and enforcement that are not consistent with the law or the district's intent.

Basic Principle: Certain body parts must be covered for all students

• Clothes must be worn in a way such that genitals, buttocks, and nipples are covered with opaque material. Cleavage should not have coverage requirements. All items listed in the "must wear" and "may wear" categories below must meet this basic principle.

Students Must Wear:

- Shirt.
- Bottom: pants/sweatpants/shorts/skirt/dress/leggings
- Shoes; activity-specific shoes requirements are permitted (for example, PE)
- Courses that include attire as part of the curriculum (for example, professionalism, public speaking, and job readiness) may include assignment-specific dress, but should not focus on covering girls' bodies or promoting culturally-specific attire.

Students May Wear:

- Hats, including religious headwear
- Hoodie sweatshirts (overhead is allowed)
- Fitted pants, including leggings, yoga pants and "skinny jeans"
- Midriff baring shirts
- Pajamas
- Ripped jeans, as long as underwear is not exposed.
- Tank tops, including spaghetti straps, halter tops, and "tube" (strapless) tops
- Athletic attire
- Clothing with commercial or athletic logos provided they do not violate Section 3 above.

Students Cannot Wear:

- Violent language or images.
- Images or language depicting drugs or alcohol (or any illegal item or activity) or the use of same.

- Hate speech, profanity, pornography, or firearms.
- Images or language that creates a hostile or intimidating environment based on any protected class.
- Visible underwear. Visible waistbands or straps on undergarments worn under other clothing are allowed.
- Bathing suits.
- Helmets or headgear that obscures the face (except as a religious observance, or medical requirement).

Bullying Prevention and Intervention

BHRSD is committed to the provision of an educational atmosphere free from bullying, cyberbullying and retaliation (Chapter 92 of the Acts of 2010, Section 5, Section 37O(d)(i)) in order to create a safe, caring, and respectful learning environment for all students. This Plan is updated to reflect G.L. c. 71, § 37O as amended by Sections 72 –74 of Chapter 38 of the Acts of 2013, which changed the definition of "perpetrator" to include "a member of a school staff, including, but not limited to, an educator, administrator, school nurse, cafeteria worker, custodian, bus driver, athletic coach, advisor to an extracurricular activity or paraprofessional." The amendment also made the plan applicable to school staff, including but not limited to, the individuals listed in the amended perpetrator definition.

Definitions:

- "Aggressor" and "Perpetrator" are used interchangeably and mean the perpetrator of bullying or retaliation as defined in G.L. c. 71, § 370.
- "Bullying", pursuant to G.L. c. 71, § 370, means the repeated use by one or more students or by a member of a school staff including, but not limited to, an educator, administrator, school nurse, cafeteria worker, custodian, bus driver, athletic coach, advisor to an extracurricular activity or paraprofessional of a written, verbal or electronic expression or a physical act or gesture or any combination thereof, directed at a target that:
- 1. causes physical or emotional harm to the target or damage to the target's property;
- 2. places the target in reasonable fear of harm to himself or herself or damage to the target's property;
- 3. creates a hostile environment at school for the target;
- 4. infringes on the rights of the target at school; or
- 5. materially and substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school.

For the purposes of this section, bullying shall include cyber-bullying.

"Cyber-bullying" is bullying through the use of technology or any electronic communication, which shall include, but shall not be limited to: any transfer of signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, data or intelligence of any nature transmitted in whole or in part by a wire, radio, electromagnetic, photo electronic or photo optical system, including, but not limited to, electronic mail, internet communications, instant messages or facsimile communications. Cyberbullying shall also include:

- 1. the creation of a web page or blog in which the creator assumes the identity of another person or
- 2. the knowing impersonation of another person as the author of posted content or messages, if the creation or impersonation creates any of the conditions enumerated in clauses (1) to

(5), inclusive, of the definition of bullying. Cyber-bullying shall also include the distribution by electronic means of a communication to more than one person or the posting of material on an electronic medium that may be accessed by one or more persons, if the distribution or posting creates any of the conditions enumerated in clauses (1) to (5), inclusive, of the definition of bullying.

"Hostile environment" means a situation in which bullying causes the school environment to be permeated with intimidation, ridicule or insult that is sufficiently severe or pervasive to alter the conditions of the student's education.

"Target" means a student victim of bullying or retaliation as defined in G.L. c. 71, § 37O.

Prohibition of Bullying

Bullying is prohibited: on school grounds, property immediately adjacent to school grounds, at a school-sponsored or school-related activity, function or program whether on or off school grounds, at a school bus stop, on a school bus or other vehicle owned, leased or used by a school district or school, or through the use of technology or an electronic device owned, leased or used by a school district or school and

at a location, activity, function or program that is not school-related, or through the use of technology or an electronic device that is not owned, leased or used by a school district or school, if the bullying creates a hostile environment at school for the target, infringes on the rights of the target at school or materially and substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school. Nothing contained herein shall require schools to staff any non-school related activities, functions, or programs.

(Chapter 92 of the Acts of 2010, Section 5, Section 370 (b).

Reporting Incidents

The school district expects students, parents or guardians, and others who witness or become aware of an instance of bullying or retaliation involving a student to report it. Reports may be made anonymously, but no disciplinary action will be taken against an alleged aggressor solely on the basis of an anonymous report. Reports of bullying and retaliation should be given orally or in writing to the building Principal. The target should report the specifics of the complaint to ensure that the subsequent investigation is focused on the relevant facts. A *Witness Form* is available in school offices, and is available on the school and district's websites.

Our school staff has been trained on the new law and shall immediately report any instance of bullying or retaliation the staff member has witnessed or becomes aware of to the principal or to the school official identified in the plan as responsible for receiving such reports or both. (Chapter 92 of the Acts of 2010, Section 5, Section 37O (g).)

If an incident of bullying or retaliation involves students from more than one school district, charter school, non-public school, approved private day or residential school or collaborative school, the school district or school first informed of the bullying or retaliation shall, consistent with state and federal law, promptly notify the appropriate administrator of the other school district or school so that both may take appropriate action. If an incident of bullying or retaliation occurs on school grounds and involves a former student under the age of 21 who is no longer enrolled in a local school district, charter school, non-public school, approved private day or

residential school or collaborative school, the school district or school informed of the bullying or retaliation shall contact law enforcement consistent with Chapter 92 of the Acts of 2010, Section 5, Section 370 (h).

The building principal/designee shall be responsible for assisting employees and students seeking guidance or support in addressing matters relating to any form of bullying. All employees will be provided professional development in bullying prevention and intervention on an ongoing basis.

It is important that allegations of bullying and retaliation be investigated and resolved as confidentially and as quickly as the circumstances permit. Once a complaint of bullying or retaliation has been made, the following course of action should be taken:

Investigating and/or gathering data Substantiating and establishing the facts Assessing the facts Documenting Communicating results

Retaliation against a person who reports bullying, provides information during an investigation of bullying, or witnesses or has reliable information about bullying shall be prohibited. (Chapter 92 of the Acts of 2010, Section 5, Section 37O (d)(v).) A student who knowingly makes a false accusation of bullying shall be subject to disciplinary action.

Following the investigation, if the Principal or his/her designee determines that bullying or retaliation has occurred, the Principal or his/her designee shall (i) notify the local law enforcement agency if the Principal or his/her designee believes that criminal charges may be pursued against an aggressor; (ii) take appropriate response or disciplinary action, including, but not limited to warnings, detentions and suspensions; (iii) notify the parents or guardians of an aggressor; and (iv) notify the parents or guardians of the target, and to the extent consistent with state and federal law, notify them of the action taken to prevent any further acts of bullying or retaliation; and (v) inform the parents or guardians of the victim about the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education's problem resolution system and the process for seeking assistance or filing a claim through the problem resolution system.

(Chapter 92 of the Acts of 2010, Section 5, Section 37O (g).)

Academic Activities

BHRSD shall provide age-appropriate instruction on bullying prevention in each grade. This instruction shall be incorporated into the curriculum, be evidence-based, and information about it must be made available to parents and guardians. RULER SEL curriculum from the Yale Center for Emotional Intelligence is being introduced in addition to our ongoing work with Restorative Practices. Initiatives will also teach students about the student-related sections of the Bullying Prevention and Intervention Plan at the beginning of the school year during administrative assemblies in Grades 6-12, and by classroom teachers in Grades K-5. At the high school, during physical education and health classes, students will be engaged in a curriculum that meets the

approaches as described above. Additional interventions at the high school include social skills groups in each of the special education programs.

The District will annually report bullying incident data to the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education.

More detailed information can be found at the BHRSD Bullying Prevention and Intervention Plan. It is available on the website and at the office, upon request.

Harassment and Non-Discrimination Procedures

Investigation Process

It is the policy of BHRSD to maintain a learning environment that is free from harassment or discrimination of any kind, including sexual harassment. It is a violation of this policy for any member of the school community to harass or discriminate another individual as outlined in this policy. Any allegation of harassment or discrimination will be investigated, and, if a violation of this policy is substantiated, disciplinary action will be taken. All reports of harassment or discrimination shall be investigated promptly, impartially and in a manner which will preserve the confidentiality of all concerned to the extent practicable under the circumstances.

Any employee, student or third party who believes that he or she has experienced harassment, violence or discrimination on the basis of his or her actual or perceived race, color, creed, ethnicity, religion, national origin, sex/gender, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity or age or who has witnessed or learns about the harassment, violence or discrimination of another person in the school environment, should inform the principal of the relevant school site or appropriate discrimination/harassment complaint official immediately or as soon as possible.

Harassment and discrimination are banned, not just at school during school hours, but also before or after school hours on all school property, including the school bus, school functions, or at school events held at other locations. The policy also applies to any off-campus conduct that causes or threatens to cause a substantial and material disruption at school, or interferes with the rights of students or employees to be free from a hostile school environment taking into consideration the totality of the circumstances on and off campus.

Harassment is defined as unwelcome conduct that creates a hostile environment. Harassing conduct may take many forms, including but not limited to verbal acts and name-calling, as well as nonverbal behavior that is physically threatening, harmful, or humiliating. Conduct is unwelcome if the student or employee did not request or invite it and considered the conduct to be undesirable or offensive.

Sex-based harassment includes both sexual harassment and gender-based harassment.

Sexual Harassment is defined in G.L. c. 151 B, § 1 as Unwelcome sexual advances; requests for sexual favors; or other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature may constitute sexual harassment where:

- Submission to or rejection of such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of a person's employment or educational development.
- Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for

employment or educational decisions affecting such individual. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work or educational performance by creating an intimidating, hostile, humiliating, or sexually offensive work or educational environment.

Gender-based harassment includes acts of verbal, nonverbal, or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility that are based on sex, although they are not necessarily sexual in nature, including harassment based on gender identity and expression. Gender-based harassment includes, but is not limited to, harassment based on the person's nonconformity with gender stereotypes, regardless of the actual or perceived sex, gender identity, or sexual orientation of the harasser or target of the harassment.

Harassment Reporting Responsibilities

Everyone in the school community is responsible for immediately reporting incidents of harassing, discrimination and/or retaliation, by anyone, in any form, that are directed at or witnessed by them at school or school sponsored event. Failure to cooperate with an investigation of such an incident may result in disciplinary action. Deceptive reporting may also be subject to a disciplinary response.

When to Report:

- If you are a target or victim of violations to the anti-harassment policy;
- If you are a witness to violations of the anti-harassment policy;
- If you see insulting or demeaning graffiti or other visual displays; and/ or
- If you have other reasons to believe that there may have been a violation of this antiharassment policy. This could include hearing re-occurring gossip about a possible incident or incidents.

An individual may report to either the principal of the relevant school site or appropriate discrimination/harassment complaint official at his or her discretion. Students may additionally report incidents that they believe involve harassment or discrimination to their guidance counselor, any teacher, administrator or any member of the support staff, and the staff member will refer the complaint to the principal or the district complaint official.

The discrimination/harassment complaint official for W. E. B. Du Bois is:

Mr. Miles Wheat

Although BHRSD encourages a written complaint, use of a formal reporting requirement is not required. Oral reports will be considered complaints as well.

BHRSD will promptly (within 48 hours) determine whether the alleged victim wants to utilize formal or informal procedures and, if the alleged victim chooses formal procedures, begin to investigate every complaint of harassment, discrimination or violence.

Confidentiality of the complaint and investigation will be maintained to the extent consistent with the school's obligations under law and under applicable collective bargaining agreements.

The grievance officer or discrimination/complaint official will inform witnesses and others involved in the resolution process of the importance of maintaining confidentiality, but will not issue any gag orders to the alleged victim or aggressor.

Complaints between the alleged victim and the alleged perpetrator may be handled two ways: through an Informal or a Formal Procedure.

The informal process is entirely voluntary and the complaints can opt out at any time and trigger the formal complaint process.

In certain cases, the harassment of a student may constitute child abuse under state law. BHRSD will comply with all legal requirements governing the reporting of suspected cases of child abuse and will report suspected criminal activity to the appropriate authorities.

Procedures for filing a complaint

Informal

It may be possible to resolve a complaint through voluntary conversations between the alleged victim and the alleged perpetrator, which will be facilitated by a school employee or by a designated discrimination/harassment complaint official. If, the alleged victim or alleged perpetrator is a student under the age of eighteen (18), the facilitator will notify the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) if, after initial consultation with the student, it is determined to be in the best interest of the student. If, the alleged victim and the alleged perpetrator feel that a resolution has been achieved, then the conversation remains confidential and no further action needs to be taken. The voluntary conversation must occur within five (5) workdays after receiving the complaint of discrimination or harassment. The results of an informal resolution shall be maintained by the facilitator, in writing.

Formal

Step 1

The grievance officer or the discrimination/harassment complaint official shall within forty-eight (48) hours of receiving the complaint or the termination of an unsuccessful informal resolution process, meet with the complainant and/or alleged victim (if they are different) by telephone or in person. The grievance officer or the discrimination/harassment complaint official will complete a discrimination/harassment complaint form based on the written or verbal allegations of the alleged victim within forty-eight (48) hours of meeting with the complainant. The complaint form will be maintained by the grievance officer or the discrimination/harassment complaint official.

Step 2

A prompt investigation shall be completed by the grievance officer or the discrimination/harassment complaint official within thirty (30) work days from the date of the complaint or report, unless impracticable. If the grievance officer or the discrimination/harassment complaint official anticipates that there may be discipline due to the

allegations, he or she will provide written notice of the investigation to the alleged perpetrator before conducting an interview of the alleged perpetrator.

The investigation may, as appropriate, consist of personal interviews with the alleged victim, the reporter (if different than the alleged victim), the individual(s) against whom the complaint is filed, and any other individuals who may have knowledge of the alleged incidents(s) or circumstances giving rise to the complaint. The investigation may also consist of any other methods and documents deemed pertinent by the grievance officer or the discrimination/harassment complaint official.

The alleged victim and the individual(s) against whom the complaint is filed have the opportunity to present witnesses and information to the grievance officer or the discrimination/harassment complaint official that they deem relevant. Refusal by the complainant to provide the investigator with documents or other evidence related to the allegations in the complaint, or to otherwise fail or refuse to cooperate in the investigation or engage in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in the dismissal of the complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegations.

Step 3

The grievance officer or the discrimination/harassment complaint official shall document his or her findings. The grievance officer or the discrimination/harassment complaint official shall send the written report of the findings to the Superintendent, alleged victim, and alleged aggressor, unless the alleged victim agrees in writing to extend the timeline.

The report shall include:

- a) a statement of the allegations investigated;
- b) a summary of the steps taken to investigate the allegations;
- c) the findings of fact based on a preponderance of the evidence gathered;
- d) the District's conclusion of whether discrimination, harassment or violence did or did not occur:
- e) the disposition of the complaint;
- f) the rationale for the disposition of the complaint; and
- g) if the District concluded discrimination, harassment, different treatment or violence occurred, a description of the District's response. However, please note that in Title IX and Title VI investigations all discipline of the alleged aggressor will be kept confidential from the alleged victim unless it directly relates to the alleged victim (e.g., alleged victims will be notified of stay-away orders).

The grievance officer or the discrimination/harassment complaint shall determine whether the allegations have been substantiated as factual and whether they appear to be violations of this policy, using a preponderance of the evidence standard. A "preponderance of the evidence" means that it is more likely than not that the alleged conduct occurred. The grievance official shall further recommend what action, if any, is required. If it is determined that harassment, discrimination or different treatment occurred, the District will take steps to prevent the

recurrence of the harassment, discrimination or different treatment and correct its discriminatory effect on the alleged victim and others if appropriate.

Formal disciplinary actions may be imposed in the event that the preponderance of the evidence indicates an alleged violation, up to and including suspension. Any disciplinary action will be in accordance with due process rights under State law and any applicable collective bargaining agreement.

Interim Measures

BHRSD shall take immediate steps to protect the alleged victim, alleged perpetrator, witnesses, and the larger school community pending the completion of an investigation or the informal process and address any ongoing harassment or discrimination. The District will take interim measures to prevent retaliation against the reporting student and minimize the burden of such measures on complainants.

In the case of alleged sexual assault, the grievance officer or the discrimination/harassment complaint official will take additional steps as necessary, for example, referring the student to a rape crisis center, creating a safety plan and/ or designating an individual at the site level to act as a support person during the investigation.

Appeals

A party may appeal the decision of the grievance official or the discrimination/harassment complaint official in writing to the Superintendent within fifteen (15) work days of receipt of the findings of the formal procedure. The Superintendent, as an impartial decision-maker will review in an impartial manner the comprehensiveness and accuracy of the investigation and the conclusions, and issue written findings within thirty (30) school days.

Referral to Law Enforcement and Outside Agencies

Some alleged conduct may constitute both a violation of District policies and criminal activity. The grievance officer or the discrimination/harassment complaint official will refer matters to law enforcement and other agencies as appropriate under the law or District policy, and inform the complainant of the right to file a criminal complaint.

Retaliation

Complainants and those who participate in the complaint resolution process or who otherwise oppose in a reasonable manner an act or policy believed to constitute discrimination are protected from retaliation by law and District policy. The grievance officer or the discrimination/harassment complaint official will inform all involved individuals that retaliation is prohibited, and that anyone who feels they have experienced harassment, coercion, intimidation, or discrimination for filing a complaint or participating in the resolution process should inform the grievance officer or the discrimination/harassment complaint official. The

District will investigate reports of retaliation and, where retaliation is found, take separate remedial and disciplinary action.

More detailed information on the harassment policies and procedures can be found at the BHRSD Harassment/Discrimination Policies and procedures online or at the schools office.

Individuals who believe that they have been subjected to harassment based upon legally protected classification should also be aware that they may contact the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education, 75 Pleasant Street, Malden, MA 02148-5023, telephone (781) 338-3300 or US Department of Education, Office of Civil Rights (OCR), 8th Floor, 5 Post Office Square, Boston, MA 02109-4557, telephone (617) 289-0111.

Hazing G.L. c. 269, §§ 17, 18, & 19

Section 17

Whoever is a principal organizer or participator in the crime of hazing as defined herein shall be punished by a fine of not more than one thousand dollars or by imprisonment in the house of correction for not more than one hundred days, or by both such fine and imprisonment. The term "hazing" as used in this section and in sections eighteen and nineteen shall mean any conduct or method of initiation into any student organization, whether on public or private property, which willfully and recklessly endangers the physical or mental health of any student or other person. Such conduct shall include whipping, beating, branding, forced calisthenics, exposure to the

weather, forced consumption of any food, liquor, beverage, drug or other substance, or any other brutal treatment of forced physical activity which is likely to adversely affect the physical health or safety of any such student or other person, or which subjects such student or other person to extreme mental stress, including extended deprivation of sleep or rest or extended isolation. Notwithstanding any other provision of this section to the contrary, consent shall not be available as a defense to prosecution under this action.

Section 18

Whoever knows that another person is the victim of hazing defined in section seventeen and is at the scene of such crime shall, to the extent that such person can do so without danger or peril to himself/herself or others, report such crime to an appropriate law enforcement official as soon as is reasonably practicable. Whoever fails to report such crime shall be punished by a fine of not more than five hundred dollars.

Section 19

Each institution of secondary education and each public and private institution of post-secondary education shall issue to every student group, student team or student organization which is part of such institution or is recognized by the institution or permitted by the institution to use its name or facilities or is known by the institution to exist as an unaffiliated student group, student team or student organization, a copy of this section and sections seventeen and eighteen; provided, however, that an institution's compliance with this section's requirements that an institution issue copies of this section and sections seventeen and eighteen to unaffiliated student groups, teams or organizations shall not constitute evidence of the institution's recognition or endorsement of said unaffiliated student groups, teams or organizations.

Each such group, team or organization shall distribute a copy of this section and sections seventeen and eighteen to each of its members, plebes, pledges or applicants for membership. It shall be the duty of each such group, team or organization, acting through its designated officer, to deliver annually, to the institution an attested acknowledgement stating that such group, team or organization has received a copy of this section and said sections seventeen and eighteen, that each of its members, plebes, pledges, or applicants has received a copy of sections seventeen and eighteen, and that such group, team or organization understands and agrees to comply with the provisions of this section and sections seventeen and eighteen.

Each institution of secondary education and each public or private institution of post-secondary education shall, at least annually, before or at the start of enrollment, deliver to each person who enrolls as a full time student in such institution a copy of this section and sections seventeen and eighteen.

Each institution of secondary education and each public or private institution of post-secondary education shall file, at least annually, a report with the board of higher education and in the case of secondary institutions, the board of education, certifying that such institution has complied with its responsibility to inform student groups, teams or organizations and to notify each full time student enrolled by it of the provisions of this section and sections seventeen and eighteen and also certifying that said institution has adopted a disciplinary policy with regard to the organizers and participants of hazing, and that such policy has been set forth with appropriate emphasis in the student handbook or similar means of communicating the institution's policies to its students. The board of higher education and, in the case of secondary institutions, the board of education shall promulgate regulations governing the content and frequency of such reports, and shall forthwith report to the attorney general any such institution which fails to make such report.

Restitution

Students and their parents are held responsible for loss of or damage to textbooks, equipment, and materials that have been assigned to them and for loss, damage or destruction of school property for which the student has been judged responsible by the administration. The administration shall establish the repair or replacement cost of the property in question and the student will be billed accordingly. The student or parent shall make restitution payable to DBRMS. Total payment must be made prior to the next school year.

Substance Abuse Policies

1. A student voluntarily acknowledges to school personnel the presence of a substance abuse concern outside of the G. L. c. 71, § 97 screening process. (Note that the process for responding to these concerns during screening is governed by that statute, which prohibits disclosure of the statement without written student consent).

School Procedure

- A. The administration shall be immediately notified.
- B. The student shall be referred to school counselors.
- C. The student's legal guardian(s) shall be notified and a meeting of the student, guardian(s) and school officials shall be held to discuss appropriate options for treatment.

- D. A designated school official will follow up with students and families at dates, times, and at a frequency agreed upon by all involved parties to support the student and family in finding and maintaining appropriate treatment.
- 2. A student is suspected to be under the influence of drugs or alcohol for reasons unrelated to the aforementioned screening process.

School Procedure

- A. The administration shall be immediately notified.
- B. The administration, in cooperation with the school's nurse, will assess the student and situation to determine if further evaluation or care is necessary.
 - If further evaluation or care is not necessary, administration will investigate the claim and report all findings to parents and school counselors to determine next steps.
 - If further evaluation or care is necessary, administration will work with the nurse to determine the severity of the impairment so that emergency care can be sought if necessary.
- C. If no emergency care is necessary, the student will be supervised by the school nurse until they can be returned to the care of their parent or guardian.
- D. School consequences, specific to the incident, will be issued at this time. Local law enforcement may be notified of the incident at this stage.
- E. Once the student is ready to return to school, a meeting will be scheduled, and a support plan, designed to prevent a recurrence of the behavior, will be created. A designated school official will follow up with students and families at dates, times, and at a frequency agreed upon by all involved parties.
- 3. A student is found to be in possession of a drug, alcoholic beverage or drug paraphernalia either for personal use or sale.

School Procedure

- A. The administration shall be immediately notified.
- B. The administration, in cooperation with the school's nurse, will assess the situation according to section II (student use).
- C. The parent/guardian shall be notified and the student may be removed from school property for the remainder of the day.
- D. School administration will conduct a full investigation in order to determine appropriate school action including logical next steps to support the involved student. Investigators will consider the following circumstances when reaching a decision:
 - The student's engagement, or willingness to engage, in treatment programs related to substance use and abuse or behaviors that may be contributing to substance abuse
 - The number of prior incidents involving drugs, alcohol, or nicotine
 - Whether or not the student possessed the substance for the purpose of selling it to others
 - Specific factors related to the type and quantity of the substance

- Other specific factors related to the present incident
- E. School consequences, specific to the incident, will be issued at this time. Local law enforcement is notified of the incident at this stage, and any confiscated contraband may be turned over to police.
- F. Once the student is ready to return to school, a meeting will be scheduled, and a support plan, designed to prevent a recurrence of the behavior, will be created. A designated school official will follow up with students and families at dates, times, and at a frequency agreed upon by all involved parties.
- 4. A student not enrolled in Berkshire Hills Regional School District is believed to be under the influence of a drug or in possession of a drug or drug paraphernalia.

School Procedure

- A. The administration is shall immediately be notified.
- B. School administration will take all necessary steps to arrange for the safe removal of the student from campus including assessing the situation according to section 2 (student use).
- C. If appropriate, the parent/guardian shall be notified.
- D. Contraband will be turned over to the police.
- E. The administration of the student's sending school will be notified.

School appropriate disciplinary actions increase with subsequent offenses.

NICOTINE REGULATIONS

In order to create and ensure an environment that is mindful of, and responsive to, the health and wellness of all students, W. E. B. Du Bois observes a policy designed to educate students on the dangers of nicotine use while honoring the right of all students to learn in a smoke and nicotine free environment. The following procedures are designed to uphold the law, educate students about the dangers of nicotine use and abuse, and help students struggling with nicotine use to find safe pathways to cessation.

If a student is found to be using tobacco, chewing tobacco, a Juul, vape, or any other type of device designed to aid in the use of nicotine, outside of the building:

- 1. The student will be allowed due process.
- 2. School administration will meet with the student and their guardian either in person or via telephone to discuss the circumstances of the infraction and to determine a school appropriate response.
- 3. A school appropriate response to nicotine use can include any combination of the following:
 - student assignment to a school sponsored substance abuse cessation program
 - an agreement between the family and school on an appropriate outside program to address nicotine abuse or the behaviors that manifest the abuse.
 - a school appropriate step designed to repair the harm done to the school community.

• a school consequence appropriate to the specific details of the offense and the number of prior offenses incurred by the student.

MEDICATIONS

All medications are kept securely the nurse's office, except for the following medications that may be self-administered by a competent child: inhalers, enzyme supplements for cystic fibrosis, glucose monitoring tests and insulin delivery systems for diabetes, and epinephrine pens. All requests for students with disabilities to self-administer medications may be directed to their 504 or IEP Teams, or to the school nurse. With all other medications, an adult must deliver medications directly to the nurse and students are not to bring in their own medications. The school nurse administers prescription medications with an order from the prescribing doctor. Over the counter medications can be administered with written consent from the legal guardian. This includes sunscreen and insect repellent.

ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION IN CASES INVOLVING DRUGS, CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES, WEAPONS, OR STAFF MEMBER ASSAULTS –G.L. c. 71, § 37H:

The superintendent of every school district shall publish the district's policies pertaining to the conduct of teachers and students. Said policies shall prohibit the use of any tobacco products within the school buildings, the school facilities or on the school grounds or on school buses by any individual, including school personnel. Said policies shall further restrict operators of school buses and personal motor vehicles, including students, faculty, staff and visitors, from idling such vehicles on school grounds, consistent with section 16B of chapter 90 and regulations adopted pursuant thereto and by the department. The policies shall also prohibit bullying as defined in section 37O and shall include the student-related sections of the bullying prevention and intervention plan required by said section 37O. Copies of these policies shall be provided to any person upon request and without cost by the principal of every school within the district.

Each school district's policies pertaining to the conduct of students shall include the following: disciplinary proceedings, including procedures assuring due process; standards and procedures for suspension and expulsion of students; procedures pertaining to discipline of students with special needs; standards and procedures to assure school building security and safety of students and school personnel; and the disciplinary measures to be taken in cases involving the possession or use of illegal substances or weapons, the use of force, vandalism, or violation of a student's civil rights. Codes of discipline, as well as procedures used to develop such codes shall be filed with the department of education for informational purposes only.

In each school building containing the grades nine to twelve, inclusive, the principal, in consultation with the school council, shall prepare and distribute to each student a student handbook setting forth the rules pertaining to the conduct of students. The student handbook shall include an age-appropriate summary of the student-related sections of the bullying prevention and intervention plan required by section 37O. The school council shall review the student handbook each spring to consider changes in disciplinary policy to take effect in September of the following school year, but may consider policy changes at any time. The annual review shall cover all areas of student conduct, including but not limited to those outlined in this section.

Notwithstanding any general or special law to the contrary, all student handbooks shall contain the following provisions:

- (a) Any student who is found on school premises or at school-sponsored or school-related events, including athletic games, in possession of a dangerous weapon, including, but not limited to, a gun or a knife; or a controlled substance as defined in chapter ninety-four C, including, but not limited to, marijuana, cocaine, and heroin, may be subject to expulsion from the school or school district by the principal.
- (b) Any student who assaults a principal, assistant principal, teacher, teacher's aide or other educational staff on school premises or at school-sponsored or school-related events, including athletic games, may be subject to expulsion from the school or school district by the principal.
- (c) Any student who is charged with a violation of either paragraph (a) or (b) shall be notified in writing of an opportunity for a hearing; provided, however, that the student may have representation, along with the opportunity to present evidence and witnesses at said hearing before the principal. After said hearing, a principal may, in his discretion, decide to suspend rather than expel a student who has been determined by the principal to have violated either paragraph (a) or (b).
- (d) Any student who has been expelled from a school district pursuant to these provisions shall have the right to appeal to the superintendent. The expelled student shall have ten days from the date of the expulsion in which to notify the superintendent of his appeal. The student has the right to counsel at a hearing before the superintendent. The subject matter of the appeal shall not be limited solely to a factual determination of whether the student has violated any provisions of this section.
- (e) Any school district that suspends or expels a student under this section shall continue to provide educational services to the student during the period of suspension or expulsion, under section 21 of chapter 76. If the student moves to another district during the period of suspension or expulsion, the new district of residence shall either admit the student to its schools or provide educational services to the student in an education service plan, under section 21 of chapter 76.
- (f) Districts shall report to the department of elementary and secondary education the specific reasons for all suspensions and expulsions, regardless of duration or type, in a manner and form established by the commissioner. The department of elementary and secondary education shall use its existing data collection tools to obtain this information from districts and shall modify those tools, as necessary, to obtain the information. On an annual basis, the department of elementary and secondary education shall make district level de-identified data and analysis, including the total number of days each student is excluded during the school year, available to the public online in a machine readable format. This report shall include district level data disaggregated by student status and categories established by the commissioner.
- (g) Under the regulations promulgated by the department, for each school that suspends or expels a significant number of students for more than 10 cumulative days in a school year, the

commissioner shall investigate and, as appropriate, shall recommend models that incorporate intermediary steps prior to the use of suspension or expulsion. The results of the analysis shall be publicly reported at the school district level.

Procedures for Short Term Suspension

(Exclusion of a student from school premises and regular educational program for a specified period of not more than ten school days.)

The principal, or his/her designee, may suspend students out-of-school on a short-term basis. Unless a student possesses a firearm, controlled substance, assaults a school staff member, or is charged or convicted of a felony complaint (see Administrative Procedures based on G.L., c. 71, §§37H and 37H ½, below) the student will receive the following due process prior to a short-term suspension:

- 1. Oral and written notice of the charges in English and the primary language of the home if other than English. This notice shall include, among other information, the potential length of the suspension and other potential consequences of the disciplinary offense, if applicable, an opportunity to have a hearing before the principal, or designee, concerning the proposed suspension, the date, time, and location of the hearing, the opportunity for the parent/ guardian to attend the hearing, and the right to interpreter services.
- 2. At the hearing, if the student and/or parent/ guardian elect to attend, the student shall have the opportunity to present his/her version of the relevant facts and any mitigating circumstances. Based on the available information, the principal, or designee, shall make a determination as to whether the student committed the disciplinary offences and what discipline shall be imposed. The student and parent/ guardian shall receive notice in writing of his/her decision, the reasons for it, and, if applicable, the type and duration of the suspension and the opportunity to make academic progress while excluded, including making up assignments and other academic work.

Emergency Removal

If the student's continued presence poses a danger to persons or property, or materially and substantially disrupts the order of the school and, in the principal's judgment, there is no alternative available to alleviate the danger or disruption; the principal may temporarily remove the student from the school prior to any hearing. This temporary removal shall not exceed two (2) days following the day of the emergency removal and the superintendent shall be immediately notified of the removal. Additionally, the principal shall make immediate and reasonable efforts to orally notify the student and student's parent/guardian of the emergency removal, the reason for the emergency removal, and the other information required in a shortterm or long-term suspension notification. During the temporary removal, the short-term suspension notice shall be provided in writing to the student and parent/guardian. The opportunity for a hearing with the principal or designee shall occur within two (2) school days, unless otherwise extended by the school and parent. A decision regarding the student's continued suspension or other removal shall be rendered the same say as the hearing and written notice shall be provided the following school day. This written notice shall include all the information required based on the type of discipline imposed (short-term suspension, in-school suspension, long-term suspension, or expulsion).

Exclusion from Privileges

The school administration may also exclude a student from privileges, such as extracurricular activities and attendance at school-sponsored events, based on a student's misconduct, regardless of whether the student is ultimately suspended or expelled. This type of removal is not subject to the procedures for suspension and expulsion outlined in this policy.

Procedures for Long Term Suspension

(Exclusion of a student from school premises and regular classroom activities for more than ten school days.)

The principal, or his/her designee, may issue long-term suspensions at the building level. The principal may also issue expulsions for the offenses set forth in G.L. c. 71, §37H and §37H½ (described in the School District Policies, State and Federal Regulations section, below)

- 1. In the event of a long term suspension or expulsion, the student will be provided oral and written notice of the charges in English and the primary language of the home if other than English. This notice shall include, among other information, the potential length of the suspension and other potential consequences of the disciplinary offense, if applicable, an opportunity to have a hearing before the principal, or designee, concerning the proposed suspension, the right for the parent/ guardian to attend the hearing, the date, time, and location of the hearing, the right to interpreter services, the right to appeal to the superintendent, the opportunity to view the student's records, the right to be represented by counsel at the student/ parent/ guardian's own expense, the right to produce witnesses, the right to cross examine witnesses, and the right to request that the hearing be recorded and to receive a copy of the audio recording.
- 2. In advance of the hearing, as at any time, the student and/or parent shall have the right to review the student's record and the documents upon which the principal or designee may rely in making a determination to suspend the student.
- 3. At the hearing, if the student and/or parent/ guardian elect to attend, the student shall have the opportunity to present his/her version of the relevant facts and any mitigating circumstances. The student shall also have the right to produce witnesses and the right to cross-examine witnesses presented by the school. Please note that student witnesses may not be compelled to testify. As indicated above, the student and/or parent/ guardian may also be represented by counsel, at private expense, and may request that the hearing be audio recorded.
- 4. After the hearing, the principal, or designee, shall make a determination as to whether the student committed the disciplinary offences and what consequences shall be imposed. The student and parent shall be notified in writing of his/her decision, including, if applicable, the disciplinary offense; the date on which the hearing took place; the participants at the hearing; key facts and conclusions reached by the principal/ designee; the length and effective date of the suspension; the date of return to school; notice of the student's opportunity to receive education services and make academic progress during the suspension; and the student's right to appeal to the superintendent or his/her designee if a long-term suspension has been imposed. The long-term suspension will remain in effect unless and until the superintendent reverses the decision.

58

Procedures for Expulsions

Expulsion is the removal of a student from the school premises, regular classroom activities, and school activities for more than ninety (90) days, indefinitely, or permanently. While excluded, students shall have the opportunity to receive educational services and make academic progress.

Students may be expelled under the following statutes:

- G.L.c.71 § 37H, which permits the principal to expel a student for possession of a dangerous weapon; possession of a controlled substance; or assault on a principal, teacher, teacher's aide, or other educational staff members on school premises or at a school sponsored event
- G.L., c.71, § 37H ½ permits the principal to suspend a student, for a period of time determined appropriate by the principal, if the student is charged with a felony and the principal determines that the student's continued presence in school would have a substantial detrimental effect on the general welfare of the school. The principal may also expel a student for being convicted of a felony, or upon an adjudication or admission in court of guilt with respect to such a felony, and the principal determines that the student's continued presence in school would have a substantial detrimental effect on the general welfare of the school.

Other Exclusions from Class

A student may be sent to the office, assigned detention, or assigned ISS for any off the following non-exhaustive list of reasons:

- Repeated and habitual disruption of a class/assembly;
- Destruction of classroom equipment or supplies;
- Repeated actions which endanger the safety and well-being of others; and
- Verbal or physical threats toward the teacher or other students.

The administration will offer all available resources to assist those students who are experiencing difficulty in school. These resources may include counseling services offered by the guidance department and/ or any other interventions that are appropriate.

Finally, the responsibility for attendance and proper conduct in school rests with the parent. The School Committee recognizes its responsibility to provide whatever services are needed to assist the parent in meeting his or her obligations but maintains that the school cannot and should not attempt to do this alone.

Reporting Requirements

- G.L. c. 71, § 37L:

Section 37L. The school committee of each city, town or regional school district shall inform teachers, administrators, and other professional staff of reporting requirements for child abuse and neglect as specified in sections fifty-one A to fifty-one F, inclusive, of chapter one hundred and nineteen, and the reporting requirements relating to fires in section 2A of chapter 148. In addition, any school department personnel shall report in writing to their immediate supervisor an incident involving a student's possession or use of a dangerous weapon on school premises at any time.

Supervisors who receive such a weapon report shall file it with the superintendent of said school, who shall file copies of said weapon report with the local chief of police, the department of social services, the office of student services or its equivalent in any school district, and the local school committee. Said superintendent, police chief, and representative from the department of social services, together with a representative from the office of student services or its equivalent, shall arrange an assessment of the student involved in said weapon report. Said student shall be referred to a counseling program; provided, however, that said counseling shall be in accordance with acceptable standards as set forth by the board of education. Upon completion of a counseling session, a follow-up assessment shall be made of said student by those involved in the initial assessment.

A student transferring into a local system must provide the new school system with a complete school record of the entering student. Said record shall include, but not be limited to, any incidents involving suspension or violation of criminal acts or any incident reports in which such student was charged with any suspended act.

Administrative Actions in Felony Cases

G.L. c. 71, §37H¹/₂:

(1) Upon the issuance of a criminal complaint charging a student with a felony or upon the issuance of a felony delinquency complaint against a student, the principal or headmaster of a school in which the student is enrolled may suspend such student for a period of time determined appropriate by said principal or headmaster if said principal or headmaster determines that the student's continued presence in school would have a substantial detrimental effect on the general welfare of the school. The student shall receive written notification of the charges and the reasons for such suspension prior to such suspension taking effect. The student shall also receive written notification of his right to appeal and the process for appealing such suspension; provided, however, that such suspension shall remain in effect prior to any appeal hearing conducted by the superintendent.

The student shall have the right to appeal the suspension to the superintendent. The student shall notify the superintendent in writing of his request for an appeal no later than five calendar days following the effective date of the suspension. The superintendent shall hold a hearing with the student and the student's parent or guardian within three calendar days of the student's request for an appeal. At the hearing, the student shall have the right to present oral and written testimony on his behalf, and shall have the right to counsel. The superintendent shall have the authority to overturn or alter the decision of the principal or headmaster, including recommending an alternate educational program for the student. The superintendent shall render a decision on the appeal within five calendar days of the hearing. Such decision shall be the final decision of the city, town or regional school district with regard to the suspension.

(2) Upon a student being convicted of a felony or upon an adjudication or admission in court of guilt with respect to such a felony or felony delinquency, the principal or headmaster of a school in which the student is enrolled may expel said student if such principal or headmaster determines that the student's continued presence in school would have a substantial detrimental effect on the general welfare of the school. The student shall receive written notification of the charges and reasons for such expulsion prior to such expulsion taking effect. The student shall

also receive written notification of his right to appeal and the process for appealing such expulsion; provided, however, that the expulsion shall remain in effect prior to any appeal hearing conducted by the superintendent.

The student shall have the right to appeal the expulsion to the superintendent. The student shall notify the superintendent, in writing, of his request for an appeal no later than five calendar days following the effective date of the expulsion. The superintendent shall hold a hearing with the student and the student's parent or guardian within three calendar days of the expulsion. At the hearing, the student shall have the right to present oral and written testimony on his behalf, and shall have the right to counsel. The superintendent shall have the authority to overturn or alter the decision of the principal or headmaster, including recommending an alternate educational program for the student. The superintendent shall render a decision on the appeal within five calendar days of the hearing. Such decision shall be the final decision of the city, town or regional school district with regard to the expulsion.

Any school district that suspends or expels a student under this section shall continue to provide educational services to the student during the period of suspension or expulsion, under section 21 of chapter 76. If the student moves to another district during the period of suspension or expulsion, the new district of residence shall either admit the student to its schools or provide educational services to the student under an education service plan, under section 21 of chapter 76.

Restraint of Students in Public Schools

In December 2014, the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE) officially approved changes to the physical restraint regulations applicable to public education programs. The definitions of what constitutes a physical restraint have been amended substantially. Furthermore, the regulations impose additional due process, incident reporting, and data review requirements.

New procedures are in place to assure that every physical restraint is reported and logged in the main office; that the principal (or designee) notifies the parents verbally and in writing of every restraint; that parents/students have the opportunity to comment on the restraint or a report of the restraint; that a principal (or designee) personally approves every restraint over 20 minutes and every time-out over 30 minutes; that the principal (or designee) has a weekly review of individual student restraint data; and that the principal (or designee) reviews school-wide restraint data on a monthly basis.

BHRSD complies with the provisions of 603 CMR 46.00 dealing with restraint of students in the public schools. To that end, the District's policy is developed pursuant to those regulations and is available upon request from the central office.

Discipline procedures for Students with Disabilities or Impairments

All students are expected to meet the requirements for behavior as set forth in this Handbook. State and federal law requires that additional provisions be made for students with disabilities.

Students with Special Needs or 504 students may be suspended for up to ten (10) consecutive days, or ten (10) cumulative days, in any one school year, as would any other student under this

handbook. Suspensions or exclusions in excess of ten (10) consecutive days or ten (10) cumulative days may also occur, provided that the conduct for which the student is being disciplined is not a manifestation of his/her disability (see below), and for special education students, that the District provides services to allow the students to receive a free and appropriate public education ("FAPE") during the suspension or exclusion. Section 504 students are not entitled to FAPE during the period of exclusion if the discipline is not a manifestation of the disability, but are entitled to make academic progress and educational services during a suspension, like a regular education student.

When a Special Needs or 504 student has been suspended for more than ten (10) consecutive or cumulative days in a school year, the Team will meet to conduct a manifestation determination. The manifestation determination Team must consider all relevant information in the student's file, including the student's IEP (or 504 Plan), in order to determine whether the behavior prompting disciplinary removal was a manifestation of the student's disability. The Team determines whether or not the misconduct was a manifestation by deciding two questions:

- 1) Is the misconduct the result of failure to implement the student's IEP or 504 Plan? AND
- 2) Is the misconduct caused by, or does it have a direct and substantial relationship to the student's disability?

A summary of the manifestation determination review will be written and a copy provided to the parent(s)/guardian(s) as soon as possible after the review, but no later than five (5) school days after the review.

If the Team finds that the misconduct was not a manifestation of the student's disability, then the student may be disciplined according to the discipline policy otherwise outlined in this Handbook. Special education students will receive a free and appropriate public education during this period of suspension or exclusion. 504 students have a right to make academic progress and receive educational services like regular education students pursuant to Chapter 222. The student's Team should also consider whether a functional behavioral assessment (FBA), behavioral intervention plan, or changes to the student's IEP/504 Plan would be appropriate. If the Team finds that the misconduct was a manifestation of the student's disability, then the school may still be able to implement an IAES (see below), but otherwise the student has a right to return to his or her placement. The student's Team will arrange for a functional behavioral assessment (if one has not been recently conducted on the student) and the development or modification of a behavior intervention plan.

Federal and state law also allow school personnel to move a student with disabilities to an interim alternative educational setting (IAES) for up to 45 school days, if that student is in possession of a dangerous weapon at school or a school function or on school property; is in possession or uses a controlled substance or sells or solicits the sale of a controlled substance while at school or a school function or on school property; or inflicts serious bodily injury on a person, including him/herself. Under these circumstances, an IAES placement may be made whether or not the conduct was a manifestation of the student's disability. The appropriate interim alternative educational setting shall be determined by the student's Team.

The IDEA and G.L. c. 71B also allow school personnel the option of pursuing an expedited hearing at the Massachusetts Bureau of Special Education Appeals (BSEA) to change the current educational placement of a student with a disability if remaining in that placement is substantially likely to result in injury to the student or others.

If the parent/guardian (or student 18 years or older) disagree with the Team's manifestation determination, or with the decision to place the student in an interim alternative educational setting, said parent/guardian (or student 18 years or older) also has the right to request an expedited due process hearing from the BSEA.

The Principal (or designee) will notify the Special Education Office of the suspendable offenses of a special needs student and a record will be kept of such notices.

Additional information on the discipline procedures for students with disabilities is available from the Special Education Department.

Students not yet eligible for special education or a 504 Plan

A child who has not been determined to be eligible for special education and related services or a 504 Plan and who has engaged in behavior that violates a code of student conduct may be eligible for the protections described above if the school has reason to suspect that the child has a disability and is in need of services. Please contact the Director of Special Education for more information.

District Policies

All policies can be found at:

http://www.edline.net/pages/bhrsd/General Info/BHRSD Policy Manual/Policy Indexes

Forms

Bullying Prevention and Incident Reporting Form

1. Name of Reporter/Person Filing the Report:				
(Note: Reports may be made anonymously, be	ut no disciplinary action will be taken			
against an alleged aggressor solely on the basi	s of anonymous report.)			
2. Check whether you are the: ☐ Target of the beh 3. Check whether you are a: ☐ Student ☐ Staff ☐ Parent ☐ Adm ☐ Other (specify)	member (specify role)inistrator			
Your contact information/telephone number:				
4. If student, state your school:				
5. If staff member, state your school or work site:				
6. Information about the incident:				
Name of Target (of behavior):				
Name of Aggressor (person who engaged in the bel				
Date(s) of Incident(s):				
Time When Incident(s) Occurred:				
Location of Incident(s) (Be as specific as possible):				
Witnesses (List people who saw the incident for ha	ve information about it):			
Name:	□Student □Staff □ Other			
Name:	\Box Student \Box Staff \Box Other			
Name:	\Box Student \Box Staff \Box Other			

8. Describe the details of the incident and what each person did and said space on back if necessary.			
		ъ.	
9. Signature of Person Filing this Re (Note: Reports may be fil		Date:	
10: Form Given to:	Position:	Date:	
Signature:		Date Received:	

FOR ADMINISTRATIVE USE ONLY

II. INVESTIGATION		
1. Investigator(s):		
Position:	_	
2. Interviews:		
☐ Interviewed aggressor		
Name: ☐ Interviewed target	Date:	
☐ Interviewed target	_	
Name:	Date:	
☐ Interviewed witnesses Name:		
Name:	Date:	
3. Any prior documented incident	Date: ts by the aggressor?	□ No
	get or target group previously?	
Any previous incidents with finding	ngs of BULLYING, RETALIATION	□ Yes □ No
Summary of Investigation:		
(Please use additional paper and atta	ach to this document as needed)	
III. CONCLUSIONS FROM T	THE INVESTIGATION	
1. Finding of bullying or reta	liation:	
□ Yes	\square No	
□ Bullying□ Retaliation□ Dis	cident documented ascipline referral only	
2. Contacts: □ Target's parent/guardian Dat □ Aggressor's parent/guardian 1 □ District Equity Coordinator (D □ Law Enforcement Date:	Date: EC)	
3. Action Taken: ☐ Loss of Privileges ☐ Community Service ☐ Ed		-
4. Describe Safety Planning:		

Follow-up with Target: scheduled for:	
Initial and date when completed:	
Follow-up with Aggressor: scheduled for:	
Initial and date when completed:	
Report forwarded to Principal - Date:	
Report forwarded to Superintendent – Date:	
(If principal was not the investigator)	
Signature and Title:	
Date:	

PARENT OR GUARDIAN CONSENT FORM ELECTRONIC INFORMATION POLICY

I have read the Berkshire Hills Regional School District's Electronic Information Resources Policy and understand that access to the electronic information resources is designed for educational purposes. I understand that it is impossible for the District to restrict access to all the controversial materials and I will not hold the District responsible for controversial materials my student acquires utilizing the district's electronic information resources. I agree to report any misuse of the electronic information resources to the District's System Administrator of School Administration. Misuse comes in many forms, but can be viewed as any messages sent or received that include/suggest pornography, unethical or illegal solicitation, racism, sexism, inappropriate language, and other issues described previously.

I hereby give my permission for my student to access the District's electronic information resources. I understand that this permission shall remain effective during the time my student is enrolled as a student in Berkshire Hills Regional School District, or until I give the District written notice that the permission given is revoked. I further understand that any amendments or revisions to the Electronic Information Resources Policy will be printed in the Student Handbook and that no other notice of amendment or revision to the Electronic Information Resources Policy will be given to me unless it is to be effective prior to publication in the Students Handbook.

Student's Name (please print)	
Parent/Guardian Name (please print)_	
Signature	Date
I do not give the Berkshire Hills Regi the District's electronic information i	onal School District permission for my student to access resources.
Student's Name (please print)	
Parent/Guardian Name (please print)	
Signature	Date

(See Section I, Policy IJNDB-E of the BHRSD Policy Book for full Policy). (This is an example of a letter you will have to sign to allow your child to use the internet services)

DISTRIBUTION OF MEDICINE LETTER

September 2022

Dear Parent/Guardian:

Our school district requires that the following forms must be on file in your child's health record before we begin to give any medicine at school, whether prescription medication or non-prescription medication (such as Tylenol).

- 1. **Signed consent by the parent or guardian to give the medicine.** Please complete the enclosed consent form and give it to the health office.
- 2. **Signed medication order.** The written medication order form should be taken to your child's licensed prescriber (your child's physician, nurse practitioner, etc.) for completion and returned to the school nurse. This order must be renewed as needed and at the beginning of each academic year.

Medicines should be delivered to the school in a pharmacy or manufacturer-labeled container by you or by the student as long as the school nurse is notified. Please ask your pharmacy to provide separate bottles for school and home. No more than a thirty day supply of the medicine should be delivered to the school.

If you have further questions concerning this policy, please do not hesitate to call me at 644-2300.

Sincerely,

Hillary Bashara, RN School Nurse

(See Section J, Policy JLCD-E of the BHRSD Policy Book)(This is an example of a letter you will have to sign to allow the school to dispense medications.)

STUDENT RECORDS LETTER



BERKSHIRE HILLS REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

GREAT BARRINGTON · STOCKBRIDGE

WEST STOCKBRIDGE

50 MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 617 • STOCKBRIDGE, MA 01262 • (413) 298-4017

Dear Parent or Guardian,

Recently, some changes were made in the regulations dealing with student records. As you know, in cases where parents have divorced or separated, there are different rules set by the state for which parent can see and get copies of his/her child's student records. The parent(s) who have physical custody, as identified in the custody agreement or order, has the right to see and get copies of his/her child's student records with no limitation. However, the parent who does not have physical custody of the child (non-custodial parent), even if he/she has legal custody or visitation rights, may or may not have access to his/her child's student records.

A non-custodial parent is eligible to see and get copies of his/her child's student records unless the school or district has been given documentation that:

- 1. the non-custodial parent has been denied legal custody based on a threat to the safety of the student or to the custodial parent, or
- 2. the non-custodial parent has been denied visitation or has been ordered to supervised visitation, or
- 3. the non-custodial parent's access to the student or to the custodial parent has been restricted by a temporary or permanent protective order.

It is necessary for divorced or separated parents to submit a copy of the custody agreement or order so that the school system may identify which of the parents has physical custody of the child, and then to determine if one of the conditions above exists. The non-custodial parent must request in writing that he/she be permitted to look at or copy his/her child's student records. However, the school can allow the non-custodial parent to have access to the child's records only after the school has notified the custodial parent and twenty-one (21) days has elapsed from this notification. During that twenty-one day period, the custodial parent can obtain a court order restricting access to the child's records or can submit a copy of any outstanding protective orders; if such orders are provided to the school system, then the school cannot release records.

Very truly yours,

Peter Dillon Superintendent of Schools

RECEIPT OF PARENT/STUDENT HANDBOOK

Each parent, guardian or the student him/herself (if over 18 years old) must sign the acknowledgment form below, indicating that he/she has received and read a copy of the handbook. If the signed acknowledgment form is not received by September 15, then the school district will nonetheless presume that the parent, guardian or student him/herself (if over 18 years of age) has received and read the handbook. Signing this handbook does not in any way create or indicate the existence of a contractual relationship between the parent/ student and the W. E. B. Du Bois Regional Middle School.

I have received and read the W. E. B. Du Bois 2022-2023 school year.	Regional Middle School Handbook for the
Student Name	
Parent Signature	Date
Please return to Crew Leader.	